
 
Utah Supreme Court’s 

Advisory Committee on the Rules of Juvenile Procedure 
 

Meeting Agenda 
 

Matthew Johnson, Chair 
 
Location: 

 
Webex Meeting 
 

Date: January 9, 2026 
 

Time: 12:00 pm – 2:00 pm  
 

Action: Welcome and approval of the December 5, 2025 
meeting minutes. Tab 1 Matthew Johnson 

Discussion & Action. Rule 3. Style of pleadings and forms.  
 

• Rule 3 was posted for public comment on November 20, 
2025, and one comment was received. 
 

Tab 2 All 

Discussion & Action. Rule 15. Preliminary inquiry; informal 
adjustment without petition. 
 

• Rule 15 was posted for public comment on November 20, 
2025, and one comment was received. 
 

Tab 3 All 

Discussion & Action. Rule 20A. Discovery in non-
delinquency proceedings. 
 

• Rule 20A was posted for public comment on November 20, 
2025, and one comment was received.  
 

Tab 4 All 

Discussion & Action. Rule 22. Initial appearance and 
preliminary inquiry hearing in cases under Utah Code 
sections 80-6-503 and 80-6-504. 
 

Tab 5 All 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=3
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=15
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=20a
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=22


• Rule 22 was posted for public comment on November 20, 
2025, and there were no comments. 
 

Discussion & Action: Rule 18. Summons; service of process; 
notice. 
 

• Law Clerk Erika Larsen has drafted and proposes additional 
amendments to Rule 18 following the December 2025 
discussion with this Committee. 
 

Tab 6 Erika Larsen 
Dawn Hautamaki 

Discussion: Rule 16. Transfer of delinquency case and venue. 
 

• After receiving feedback from practitioners across the state 
that the current procedures are not practical and create 
delays, a workgroup was created to amend Rule 16. 

• Judge Michael Leavitt joined the workgroup and has 
generously volunteered to draft proposed amendments. An 
update will be provided. 
 

  All 

Discussion & Action: Rule 20. Discovery. 
 

• Judge Johnson proposes further amendments to Rule 20 to 
address expert notice. Three options are proposed: (1) 
adoption of provisions found in Utah Code section 77-17-13; 
(2) borrow language found in Rule 20A(h); or (3) cross 
reference to Utah Code section 77-17-13. 
 

Tab 7 Judge D. Johnson 

Discussion & Action: Section VI Proceedings under Utah 
Code section 80-6-503. 
 

• Committee staff propose amending the section title to 
“Section VI Proceedings under Title 80, Chapter 6, Part 5. 

• Specific references to statute in the titles of Rule 21 and Rule 
23A are also removed. 
 

Tab 8 All 

Discussion: New URCP 103. Child protective orders. 
 

• The Supreme Court’s Advisory Committee on the Rules of 
Civil Procedure seeks this Committee’s feedback regarding 
proposed new Rule 103 addressing child protective orders in 
the district court. Rule 103 has been through a public 
comment period and received several comments from 
Children Justice Centers (CJC). 

Tab 9 Stacy Haacke 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=18
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=16
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=20
https://le.utah.gov/xcode/Title77/Chapter17/77-17-S13.html?v=C77-17-S13_1800010118000101
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=20a
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=21
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=23A
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=23A
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2025/09/URCP-Rule-103-NEW-08.20.2025.pdf
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/09/03/rules-of-civil-procedure-comment-period-closes-october-20-2025/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/09/03/rules-of-civil-procedure-comment-period-closes-october-20-2025/


Discussion: Old business or new business.  All 
 
URJP Committee Site 
 

Meeting Schedule: 

January 9, 2026 August 7, 2026 

February 6, 2026 September 4, 2026 

March 6, 2026 October 2, 2026 - Hybrid 

April 3, 2026 November 6, 2026 

May 1, 2026 December 4, 2026 

June 5, 2026  

  

 

https://www.utcourts.gov/utc/juvenile-procedure/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 



  1 

Utah Supreme Court’s 2 

Advisory Committee on the Rules of Juvenile Procedure 3 

 4 

Draft Meeting Minutes 5 

 6 

Matthew Johnson, Chair 7 

 8 

Location: Webex Meeting 9 

 10 

Date:  December 5, 2025 11 

 12 

Time:  12:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m. 13 

 14 
Attendees: 
Matthew Johnson, Chair 
William Russell, Vice-Chair 
Adrianna Davis  
Alan Sevison, Emeritus Member 
Alexa Arndt 
Carolyn Perkins 
David Fureigh, Emeritus Member 
Dawn Hautamaki  
Elizabeth Ferrin  
Janette White 
Judge David Johnson 
Judge Debra Jensen   
Michelle Jeffs 
Stephen Star 
Thomas Luchs  

Excused Members: 
James Smith 
Tyler Ulrich, Recording Secretary 
 
 

Guests: 
 
 

Staff: 
Erika Larsen, Juvenile Court Law Clerk 



2 
 

Raymundo Gallardo, Administrative Office of the Courts  
 15 

1. Welcome and approval of the November 7, 2025, Meeting Minutes. (Matthew 16 
Johnson) 17 
  18 
Committee Chair Matthew Johnson welcomed everyone to the meeting. Chair 19 
Johnson then presented the prepared minutes from the November 7, 2025, 20 
Committee meeting and asked if there were any comments or corrections that needed 21 
to be made. There were no comments from the Committee, and no proposed 22 
corrections were presented. Dawn Hautamaki made a motion to approve the 23 
minutes. Michelle Jeffs seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 24 

 25 
2. Discussion & Action: Rule 16. Transfer of delinquency case and venue. (All) 26 
 27 

Chair Johnson and Vice-chair Bill Russell met with the Supreme Court on November 28 
19, 2025 to present the proposed changes to Rule 16 that were approved by this 29 
Committee on November 7th. The Court had concern with a rule that allows the 30 
juvenile court to direct prosecutors on what to do outside of proceedings. The Court 31 
also had concern with a rule that gives prosecutors authority to do something.  32 
 33 
In regards to the procedures in the rule that direct prosecutors in the county of 34 
residence to facilitate discovery disclosure between the prosecutor in the county of 35 
occurrence and defense counsel in the county of residence, Chair Johnson reported 36 
that he’s received feedback from prosecutors in the district he practices. As 37 
prosecutors in the county of residence, those attorneys indicate they prefer to stay out 38 
of that process. Additionally, those attorneys prefer that the charged offenses be heard 39 
where they occurred, especially given the advantage of remote hearing capabilities. 40 
 41 
Vice-chair Russell added that the Court supports the intent behind the recently 42 
approved rule, effective September 1, 2025, and the more recently proposed changes 43 
from the November 7, 2025 meeting that include more specific time periods related to 44 
discovery as well as the addition of the cross reference to Rule 16 of the Utah Rules of 45 
Criminal Procedure. The Court, however, asks that the Committee reframe the current 46 
language in Rule 16 to be more “court-facing” language. 47 
 48 
Stephen Starr acknowledged the intent behind the rule, but reported frustration with 49 
the practicality of it. Mr. Starr argued that the former process of transferring charges 50 
after arraignment to the county of occurrence, where the evidence resides, was more 51 
efficient. Mr. Starr indicates many attorneys feel this way. 52 
 53 
Alexa Arndt shared similar frustrations. In Ms. Arndt’s experience, the current 54 
process is burdensome and adds unnecessary court hearings and more work. 55 



3 
 

Carolyn Perkins agreed with Mr. Starr’s and Ms. Arndt’s expressed concerns. 56 
Additionally, Ms. Perkins has found that the process creates more work as she 57 
attempts to work with out-of-county prosecutors. Ms. Perkins also prefers the former 58 
process of resolving out-of-county offenses in the county of occurrence. 59 
 60 
After hearing from members, Judge Johnson recommended that the Committee take 61 
a broader approach than simply reframing some of the language as suggested by the 62 
Utah Supreme Court. Judge Johnson suggests that the Committee may need to 63 
overhaul the entire rule.  64 
 65 
The Committee then reviewed the previous version of Rule 16 adopted September 1, 66 
2021 that was replaced by the 2025 amendment. Many stakeholders expressed they 67 
would prefer returning to that former process instead of continuing with the newly 68 
adopted version of Rule 16. 69 
 70 
On the other hand, Janette White shared the minor’s perspective. In particular, Ms. 71 
White described situations for youth that are in court-ordered placements outside 72 
their county of residence for whom there is a lack of effort to communicate with the 73 
youth, guardians, and interested parties, and a lack of effort to resolve charges in the 74 
county of residence. This can be chaotic for the kids. David Fureigh reminded the 75 
Committee that the initial changes that provide for resolution of charges in the county 76 
of residence were triggered by a desire to better support minors, improve 77 
communication regarding discovery, and create in rule a consistent practice in the 78 
handling of out-of-county charges. 79 
 80 
Judge Jensen also reminded the Committee that the Board of Juvenile Court Judges 81 
supported the version of the rule adopted September 1, 2025, because the Board 82 
believed it would help improve the former process. Judge Jensen has also received 83 
feedback from colleagues, and one particular suggestion was to include an initial offer 84 
right on the petition. Mr. Starr thinks this is a good idea, but it does not solve the 85 
problem. In order to ensure that the offer is a good offer, defense counsel would need 86 
to review discovery before reviewing the offer with their client. 87 
 88 
Judge Jensen agreed that the currently experienced frustrations are also evident in her 89 
courtroom. There’s a lack of communication between prosecutors in the county of 90 
residence and prosecutors in the county of occurrence, mainly due to prosecutors not 91 
getting appointed in the county of occurrence. The rule requires that prosecutors 92 
cooperate, but there is no cooperation.   93 
 94 
Mr. Starr and Ms. Perkins contend that an offense should be adjudicated where the 95 
offense is committed. Ms. Jeffs also agrees that it is best to resolve petitions in the 96 
county of occurrence, where the people who know what happened reside. Ms. Jeffs 97 
adds that including an offer on the petition undermines the role of the defense 98 



4 
 

attorney, who may have a perspective and arguments that are helpful for the 99 
prosecutor to hear. Similarly, juvenile delinquency proceedings are more 100 
collaborative in nature, and an offer on the petition would undermine this approach. 101 
 102 
Chair Johnson proposed creating a workgroup to remedy the concerns expressed 103 
regarding the current procedure in Rule 16. Vice-chair Russell agreed with the 104 
creation of a workgroup, and summarized two possible solutions: (1) the county of 105 
occurrence holds the arraignment and all subsequent hearings, but this may be 106 
unrealistic given the youth will be supervised in the county of residence; and (2) the 107 
county of residence arraigns the minor and then transfers, which was the former but 108 
inconsistent process.  109 
 110 
Mr. Starr made a motion to table Rule 16 and to create a workgroup to further amend 111 
Rule 16. Ms. Arndt seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. Chair 112 
Johnson volunteered to participate. The Committee asked Erika Larsen to participate 113 
in the workgroup and research what other states are doing in this area of delinquency 114 
proceedings.  115 
 116 

3. Discussion and Action: New Rule 23. Appointment of counsel. (Vice-chair Bill 117 
Russell) 118 
 119 
Vice-chair Russell presented and reviewed the proposed new rule regarding the 120 
appointment of counsel in bindover cases. This rule has been drafted with the help of 121 
a workgroup, and this is the seventh iteration. Vice-chair Russell pointed to several 122 
notable changes or additions, including: numbering the rule as Rule 23, which is 123 
currently available; changing the term “transfer” to “bindover” as it is used 124 
throughout statute; the experience standards now include both adult court and 125 
juvenile court experience; the experience standards can also now include experience 126 
as both prosecution and defense attorneys; the removal of an exemption to the rule 127 
that favored defense organizations; education is required and remains at the very top 128 
of the standards list; and prior bindover experience or the ability to consult with an 129 
experienced bindover attorney is also a requirement. The Utah Indigent Defense 130 
Commission has agreed to maintain a roster of qualified attorneys. 131 
 132 
Vice-chair Russell then shared that privately-retained counsel is also addressed by the 133 
rule in paragraph (c), albeit with some reluctance on Vice-chair Russell’s part. There 134 
were members of the workgroup that suggested including an inquiry into the 135 
qualifications of private counsel. Vice-chair Russell is concerned about this because 136 
the 6th Amendment grants the right to counsel of choice. That said, Vice-chair Russell 137 
believes the trial court has the authority and the duty to ensure that counsel is 138 
competent. Additionally, paragraph (c) not only allows a court to inquire into private 139 
counsel’s qualifications, but it also requires that the court make findings on the record 140 
regarding private counsel’s qualifications. 141 



5 
 

 142 
Chair Johnson believes that the inquiry into private counsel’s qualifications as 143 
allowed by paragraphs (c) adds a somber reminder to the youth and the family that 144 
the case is very serious; hence, competent counsel is necessary. 145 
 146 
As a way to address privately-retained counsel, Ms. Larsen suggested drafting 147 
language into the rule that allows a court to enter findings that a youth waived their 148 
right to properly qualified counsel as outlined in the new rule instead of questioning 149 
a youth’s and their family’s decision to hire and proceed with an unqualified attorney. 150 
Mr. Russell believes this type of solution continues to imply that the youth and family 151 
made a poor choice in counsel. 152 
 153 
Chair Johnson recommended presenting to the Utah Supreme Court two versions of 154 
the rule: one version that includes paragraph (c) regarding privately-retained counsel, 155 
and another without it.  156 
 157 
Judge Jensen is aware that the court cannot tell a youth that their attorney is not 158 
qualified. Instead, the court may inquire into the attorney’s understanding of all 159 
juvenile court procedures regarding bindover cases. 160 
 161 
The Committee then had a brief discussion on appeals related to unqualified counsel. 162 
Judge Johnson is not aware of a case where there have been claims and decisions that 163 
counsel was unqualified. There may be claims of ineffective assistance of counsel and 164 
those are common throughout the legal system. Vice-chair Russell is also not aware 165 
of an appellate case where a finding of ineffective assistance has been made by any trial 166 
or appellate court. 167 
 168 
Regarding the education requirements listed in subparagraph (a)(1), Judge Johnson 169 
has received feedback from colleagues indicating that the education requirements 170 
were quite minimal. Some think the education requirements could be more robust. 171 
Vice-chair Russell agrees that four hours of education is light, but the workgroup 172 
arrived at this amount through compromise. 173 
 174 
Vice-chair Russell made a motion to present a version of new Rule 23 with paragraph 175 
(c) and a second version without it to the Utah Supreme Court and request a public 176 
comment period. Judge Johnson seconded the motion. The motion passed 177 
unanimously.  178 

 179 
4. Discussion and Action: Rule 18. Summons; service of process; notice. (Erika Larsen, 180 

Dawn Hautamaki) 181 
 182 

Ms. Larsen explained to the Committee that the proposed changes to Rule 18 intend 183 
to strike a balance between those things that require formal service of process and 184 



6 
 

those that are less formal and can be served via email. Ms. Larsen adds that Rule 4 185 
and Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure were analyzed in order to sort out 186 
that distinction, i.e., case initiating documents, or petitions, requiring formal service 187 
of process versus case-ongoing documents that may be served via email.  188 
 189 
Ms. Hautamaki added that Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure was amended 190 
in November 2024 to include email as a method of service. This change may have 191 
unintentionally failed to consider the juvenile court, which is now only required to 192 
obtain written consent from a party for email service of notice of further proceedings 193 
as required by Rule 18.  The hope is to remove the requirement for written consent in 194 
order to align Rule 18 with Rule 5 of the civil rules. Ms. Larsen further expounded 195 
that even Rule 5 of the civil rules does not require service via email, but it allows it if 196 
an email address is provided.  197 
 198 
Ms. White shared concern with the assumption that clients and attorneys will 199 
maintain communication. In her experience, both parents and attorneys fail to 200 
properly and timely communicate with each other, and as a result, parents don’t 201 
show-up to hearings. Ms. White suggested additional requirements in the rule that 202 
ensure that parents understand that if an email address is provided for future service, 203 
the parent understands the court will send documents to their email and that the 204 
parent is expected to check their email. Ms. Larsen will work on adding clarifying this 205 
expectation in the rule, because Rule 5 of the civil rules allows service via email when 206 
the person being served has provided an email address.  207 
 208 
Ms. Perkins agreed that the assumption that clients are in constant communication 209 
with their attorneys may not be true. Furthermore, this may not be due to bad 210 
communication, but due to a parent’s current success with a reunification plan or 211 
because the attorney is not the person helping that parent at a particular point in the 212 
case. Ms. Perkins is also concerned that if parents do not receive notice, the 213 
consequences of missing a hearing can be serious. 214 
 215 
Ms. Larsen suggested adding reference to all methods of service that are included in 216 
Rule 5 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and an instruction in the rule that directs 217 
a court to identify a party’s preferred method of service. Ms. Perkins and Ms. White 218 
support the idea of having the court ask and identify a parent’s preferred method of 219 
service. 220 
 221 
Judge Johnson reiterated a concern that has been shared in the past related to due 222 
process. If a hearing has been changed and the parent is not checking their email or 223 
communicating with their attorney and they miss the hearing, warrants may be 224 
issued. If the written consent to receive service by email is removed from Rule 18, 225 
Judge Johnson believes this raises due process concerns. 226 
 227 



7 
 

Ms. Larsen and Ms. White suggested adding the following language to paragraph (d), 228 
line 94, “At the initial hearing when a party appears, the court will inquire regarding 229 
the party’s preferred method of notice.”  230 
 231 
Mr. Fureigh clarified that Rule 18 creates a legal process by which a party can be 232 
legally notified of a hearing, so that if a party is notified of the hearing in accordance 233 
with the rule and the party fails to appear, the other party can request the missing 234 
party be held in contempt. Mr. Fureigh also suggested more permissive language, e.g., 235 
“service may be effectuated by…”, because there is concern that if a parent chooses 236 
the method of service, the court or the AG’s Office may be limited to only the method 237 
of service chosen by the parent. Moreover, Mr. Fureigh questions the need for the 238 
inquiry into a party’s preferred method of service because judges are already asking 239 
parties this question during proceedings. 240 
 241 
Mr. Starr made a motion to table Rule 18. Vice-chair Russell seconded the motion, and 242 
the motion passed unanimously. 243 

 244 
5. Discussion and Action: Rule 20. Discovery. (Judge Johnson) 245 
 246 

Rule 20 is tabled until the next meeting. 247 
 248 

6. Discussion and Action: Section VI Proceedings under Utah Code section 80-6-503; 249 
Rule 21; and Rule 23. (All) 250 

 251 
These matters are tabled until the next meeting. 252 
 253 

7. Discussion and Action: 2026 Meeting Schedule. (All) 254 
 255 

The Committee approved the 2026 meeting schedule with two minor adjustments. 256 
The January meeting will be held on the second Friday of the month, on January 9th. 257 
Mr. Starr made the motion to meet on January 9, 2026. Ms. Jeffs seconded the motion. 258 
The motion passed unanimously. 259 
 260 
The Committee will hold a hybrid meeting in the fall. Vice-chair Russell made a 261 
motion to hold a hybrid meeting on October 2, 2026. Mr. Starr seconded the motion. 262 
The motion passed unanimously.  263 
 264 
The meeting adjourned at 2:03 p.m. The next meeting will be held on January 9, 2026, 265 
via Webex. 266 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 2 



URJP003. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 3. Style of pleadings and forms. 1 

(a) Pleadings in the juvenile court include, but are not limited to, petitions, motions, 2 

and responsive pleadings. Pleadings and other papers filed with the juvenile court 3 

shallmust comply with Utah R. Civ. PRule 10 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 4 

Pleadings and other papers in cases transferred from the district court shallmust show 5 

the juvenile court case number and the district court case number. 6 

(b) Matters filed in the court shallmust be captioned as follows: 7 

(1) In minors’ cases or private petition cases: “State of Utah, in the interest of 8 

__________________, a minor under ________ years of age.” 9 

(2) In cases of adults charged with any crime: “State of Utah, Plaintiff, vs. 10 

________________________, Defendant.” 11 

(3) In cases requesting protective orders: “__________________, Petitioner, vs. 12 

__________________, Respondent.” 13 

(4) In adoptions: “In the matter of the adoption of _____________________.” 14 

(5) In cases transferred from district court involving issues of custody, support, and 15 

parent time: “State of Utah, in the interest of __________________. In the matter of 16 

__________________, Petitioner, vs. __________________, Respondent.” 17 

(6) In all other matters and for court -approved forms used across more than one case 18 

type: “In the matter of: ____________________ (case name).” 19 

(c) Forms used in the juvenile court shallmust be those standardized and adopted by 20 

the Board of Juvenile Court Judges or the Judicial Council, and those forms may be 21 

single spaced when so authorized. 22 

Effective Date:  23 



URJP003. Amend.   Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 3. Style of pleadings and forms. 1 

(a) Pleadings in the juvenile court include, but are not limited to, petitions, motions, 2 

and responsive pleadings. Pleadings and other papers filed with the juvenile court 3 

must comply with Rule 10 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Pleadings and other 4 

papers in cases transferred from the district court must show the juvenile court case 5 

number and the district court case number. 6 

(b) Matters filed in the court must be captioned as follows: 7 

(1) In minors’ cases or private petition cases: “State of Utah, in the interest of 8 

__________________, a minor under ________ years of age.” 9 

(2) In cases of adults charged with any crime: “State of Utah, Plaintiff, vs. 10 

________________________, Defendant.” 11 

(3) In cases requesting protective orders: “__________________, Petitioner, vs. 12 

__________________, Respondent.” 13 

(4) In adoptions: “In the matter of the adoption of _____________________.” 14 

(5) In cases transferred from district court involving issues of custody, support, and 15 

parent time: “State of Utah, in the interest of __________________. In the matter of 16 

__________________, Petitioner, vs. __________________, Respondent.” 17 

(6) In all other matters and for court-approved forms used across more than one case 18 

type: “In the matter of: ____________________ (case name).” 19 

(c) Forms used in the juvenile court must be those standardized and adopted by the 20 

Board of Juvenile Court Judges or the Judicial Council, and those forms may be single 21 

spaced when so authorized. 22 

Effective Date: 23 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=10


UTAH COURT RULES – PUBLISHED FOR COMMENT

The Supreme Court and Judicial Council invite comments about amending these
rules. To view the proposed amendment, click on the rule number.

To submit a comment or view the comments of others, click on “Continue
Reading.” To submit a comment, scroll down to the “Leave a Reply” section, and
type your comment in the “Comment” field. Type your name and email address in
the designated fields and click “Post Comment.”

Comments cannot be acknowledged, but all will be considered. Comments are
saved to a buffer for review before publication.

Posted: November 20, 2025
Utah Courts

Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period Closes

January 5, 2026

URJP003. Style of pleadings and forms. Amend. The proposed

change to Rule 3(b) permits a generic caption for court-

approved forms that the Self-Help Center can provide to self-

represented parties for use across multiple case types,

expanding access to justice.

URJP020A. Discovery in non-delinquency proceedings. Amend.

The proposed changes to Rule 20A clarify that the rule applies

to discovery in non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings

in juvenile court. The changes also refine language and update

cross-references throughout the rule. Specifically, paragraph (b)

is revised to more closely align with Rule 26 of the Utah Rules of

Civil Procedure. Paragraph (g) now incorporates the caution

language from Rule 36 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure,

with a shortened timeframe. Finally, new paragraphs (n) and (o)

relocate provisions currently found in Rule 20 of the Utah Rules

of Juvenile Procedure. (Changes to Rule 20 are forthcoming.)

URJP022. Initial appearance and preliminary hearing in cases

under Utah Code sections 80-6-503 and 80-6-504. Amend. The

proposed change to Rule 22(g) amends the preliminary hearing

Search... SEARCH

To view all comments
submitted during a
particular comment
period, click on the
comment deadline date. To
view all comments to an
amendment, click on the
rule number.

CATEGORIES

-Alternate Dispute

Resolution

-Code of Judicial

Administration

-Code of Judicial

Conduct

-Fourth District Court

Local Rules

-Licensed Paralegal

Practitioners Rules of

Professional Conduct

-Rules Governing

Licensed Paralegal

Practitioner

-Rules Governing the

State Bar

HOME LINKS

12/31/25, 9:29 AM Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period Closes January 5, 2026 – Utah Court Rules – Published for Comment

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/ 1/19

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/author/cindys/
http://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2025/11/Rule-3-Draft-October-10-2025-redline_Public-Comment.pdf
http://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2025/11/Rule-20A-Draft-November-12-2025-redline_Public-Comment.pdf
http://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2025/11/Rule-22-Draft-October-10-2025-redline_Public-Comment.pdf
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/alternate-dispute-resolution/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/alternate-dispute-resolution/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/fourth-district-court-local-rules/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/fourth-district-court-local-rules/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/licensed-paralegal-practitioners-rules-of-professional-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/licensed-paralegal-practitioners-rules-of-professional-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/licensed-paralegal-practitioners-rules-of-professional-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-governing-licensed-paralegal-practitioner/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-governing-licensed-paralegal-practitioner/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-governing-licensed-paralegal-practitioner/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-governing-the-state-bar/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-governing-the-state-bar/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/links/


This entry was posted in URJP003, URJP015, URJP020A,

URJP022.

timeframes. For youth in custody, a hearing will be held no later

than 14 days after the initial appearance. For youth not in

custody, the preliminary hearing will be held no later than 28

days after the initial appearance. These timeframes are

consistent with those in Rule 7 of the Utah Rules of Criminal

Procedure.

Second Comment Period

URJP015. Preliminary inquiry; informal adjustment without

petition. Amend. Rule 15 is being posted for a second public

comment period. The added language to paragraph (d) is a

response to Senate Bill 157 (2025), which amended Utah Code

section 80-6-304 to require probation officers to inform minors

of their right to consult counsel—and how to access counsel—

before declining a nonjudicial adjustment. This change remains

part of the proposal. Additional proposed changes remove

references to “parent, guardian, or custodian” from paragraphs

(b), (c), (d), and (e). These revisions reflect that Utah Code

section 80-6-303.5 does not require parental participation or

agreement for a minor to enter a nonjudicial adjustment.

« Code of Judicial

Administration – Comment

Period Closes January 12,

2026

Rules of Appellate Procedure

– Comment Period Closes

January 5, 2026 »

UTAH COURTS

View more posts from this author

-Rules of Appellate

Procedure

-Rules of Civil

Procedure

-Rules of Criminal

Procedure

-Rules of Evidence

-Rules of Juvenile

Procedure

-Rules of Professional

Conduct

-Rules of Professional

Practice

-Rules of Small Claims

Procedure

ADR101

ADR103

Appendix A

Appendix B

Appendix F

CJA 1-101

CJA Appendix F

CJA01-0201

CJA01-0204

CJA01-0205

CJA01-0205

CJA01-0302

CJA01-0303

CJA01-0304

CJA01-0305

CJA010-01-0404

CJA010-1-020

CJA014-0701

CJA014-0704

CJA014-0705

CJA014-0719

CJA02-0101

CJA02-0102

CJA02-0103

CJA02-0104

CJA02-0106.01

CJA02-0106.02

CJA02-0106.03

CJA02-0106.04

CJA02-0106.05

CJA02-0204

CJA02-0206

CJA02-0208

CJA02-0208

CJA02-0211

CJA02-0212

CJA03-0101

CJA03-0102

CJA03-0103

CJA03-0103

CJA03-0104

CJA03-0105

3 thoughts on “Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period
Closes January 5, 2026”

12/31/25, 9:29 AM Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period Closes January 5, 2026 – Utah Court Rules – Published for Comment

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/ 2/19

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urjp003/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urjp015/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urjp020a/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urjp022/
http://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/wp-content/uploads/sites/31/2025/11/Rule-15-Draft-October-10-2025-redline_2nd-Public-Comment-1.pdf
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/26/code-of-judicial-administration-comment-period-closes-january-12-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/19/rules-of-appellate-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/author/cindys/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-appellate-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-appellate-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-civil-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-civil-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-criminal-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-criminal-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-evidence/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-juvenile-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-juvenile-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-professional-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-professional-conduct/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-professional-practice/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-professional-practice/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-small-claims-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/rules-of-small-claims-procedure/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urcadr101/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/urcadr103/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/appendix-a/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/appendix-b/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/appendix-f/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja-1-101/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja-appendix-f/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0201/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0204/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0205/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja01-0205-code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0302/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja01-0303/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0304/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja01-0305/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja010-01-0404/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja010-1-020/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja014-0701/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja014-0704/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja014-0705/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja014-0719/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0101/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0102/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0103/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0104/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0106-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0106-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0106-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0106-04/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0106-05/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0204/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0206/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0208/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja02-0208-code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0211/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja02-0212/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0101/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0102/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0103/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja03-0103-code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0104/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0105/


Jason Richards

November 21, 2025 at 6:46 am

Rule 20A(b) requires the parties to share initial disclosures
“within 14-days of the answer.” Most “answers” in child welfare
proceedings are given orally at the first pre-trial hearing. It
would be good if this rule clarified “within 14-days from the first
pre-trial hearing.” Some AAG’s resist providing initial discovery
because an answer is not formally ‘filed’ with the court.
Therefore, I suggest the rule state that initial discovery be
provided within 14-days “of the first pre-trial hearing.”

Additionally Rule 20A(c), (d), and (e) should not state “after the
answer is filed.” As stated, most “answers” are given orally
pursuant to URJP 19(a). Therefore, the discovery rules should
be consistent with Rule 19(a). Stating that parties can make
interrogatories or take depositions after the “answer is filed” is
confusing. Either change to “after the answer is submitted” or
“after the answer is made.”

It would be less confusing in Rule 20A(c), (d), and (e) to just state
“After the first pre-trial hearing…” in stead of “After the answer
is filed…”

Also- it would be great if Rule 20A offered more clarity on the
filing of pre-trial disclosures. The only pre-trial disclosure that is
even required is expert notices.

Thank you

Reply

Chris Yannelli

November 25, 2025 at 3:02 pm

Parents, Guardians, and custodians are out on URJP015. I
understand this because the NJ statutory scheme has
abandoned parents, guardians, and custodians from being
involved. I also understand that parents may not be considered
trusted adults in some scenarios where and when they want
their children to accept responsibility for misdeeds. There is an
old adage that Bill Russell likely recalls “Mother Knows Best”.
Well, no mas…

I am not suggesting Bill is old, he is simply wise…

Reply

Kimberly Heywood

CJA03-0106

CJA03-0106

CJA03-0107

CJA03-0108

CJA03-0109

CJA03-0111

CJA03-0111.01

CJA03-0111.02

CJA03-0111.03

CJA03-0111.04

CJA03-0111.05

CJA03-0111.06

CJA03-0112

CJA03-0113

CJA03-0114

CJA03-0115

CJA03-0116

CJA03-0117

CJA03-0201

CJA03-0201.02

CJA03-0202

CJA03-0301

CJA03-0301.01

CJA03-0302

CJA03-0303

CJA03-0304

CJA03-0304.01

CJA03-0305

CJA03-0306

CJA03-0306.01

CJA03-0306.02

CJA03-0306.03

CJA03-0306.04

CJA03-0306.05

CJA03-0401

CJA03-0402

CJA03-0403

CJA03-0404

CJA03-0406

CJA03-0407

CJA03-0408

CJA03-0410

CJA03-0411

CJA03-0412

CJA03-0413

CJA03-0414

CJA03-0415

CJA03-0418

CJA03-0419

CJA03-0420

CJA03-0421

CJA03-0422

CJA03-0501

CJA03-0501

CJA04-0101

CJA04-0103

CJA04-0106

12/31/25, 9:29 AM Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period Closes January 5, 2026 – Utah Court Rules – Published for Comment

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/ 3/19

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/?replytocom=3673#respond
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/?replytocom=3674#respond
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0106/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja03-0106-code-of-judicial-administration/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja03-0107/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0108/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0109/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-04/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-05/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0111-06/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0112/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0113/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0114/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0115/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0116/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0117/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0201/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0201-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0202/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0301/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0301-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0302/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0303/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0304/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0304-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-305/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306-04/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0306-05/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0401/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0402/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0403/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0404/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0406/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0407/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0408/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0410/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0411/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0412/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0413/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0414/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0415/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0418/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0419/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0420/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0421/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0422/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/code-of-judicial-administration/cja03-0501/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja03-0501-2/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0101/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0103/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0106/


November 28, 2025 at 1:51 pm

URJP003. Style of pleadings and forms. Not all minors will be
under a certain age. Instead of having a blank space to type an
age in please consider a check box option of under or over with
an age of 18 as the listed age. Example: “State of Utah, in the
interest of ____________, a minor ____ under / ____ over 18 years of
age.”

Reply

Leave a Reply

Your email address will not be published. Required fields are marked *

Comment *

Name *

Email *

Website

POST COMMENT

CJA04-0110

CJA04-0201

CJA04-0202

CJA04-0202.01

CJA04-0202.02

CJA04-0202.03

CJA04-0202.04

CJA04-0202.05

CJA04-0202.06

CJA04-0202.07

CJA04-0202.08

CJA04-0202.09

CJA04-0202.10

CJA04-0202.11

CJA04-0202.12

CJA04-0203

CJA04-0205

CJA04-0206

CJA04-0208

CJA04-0302

CJA04-0401

CJA04-0401.01

CJA04-0401.02

CJA04-0401.03

CJA04-0402

CJA04-0403

CJA04-0404

CJA04-0405

CJA04-0408

CJA04-0408.01

CJA04-0409

CJA04-0410

CJA04-0411

CJA04-0501

CJA04-0502

CJA04-0503

CJA04-0508

CJA04-0509

CJA04-0510

CJA04-0510.01

CJA04-0510.02

CJA04-0510.03

CJA04-0510.04

CJA04-0510.05

CJA04-0510.06

CJA04-0601

CJA04-0602

CJA04-0603

CJA04-0609

CJA04-0610

CJA04-0613

CJA04-0701

CJA04-0702

CJA04-0704

CJA04-0801

CJA04-0901

CJA04-0902

12/31/25, 9:29 AM Rules of Juvenile Procedure – Comment Period Closes January 5, 2026 – Utah Court Rules – Published for Comment

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/ 4/19

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/2025/11/20/rules-of-juvenile-procedure-comment-period-closes-january-5-2026/?replytocom=3676#respond
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0110/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0201/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-04/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-05/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-06/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-07/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-08/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-09/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-10/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-11/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0202-12/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0203/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0205/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0206/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0208/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0302/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0401/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0401-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0401-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0401-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0402/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0403/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0404/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0405/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0408/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0408-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0409/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0410/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0411/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0501/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0502/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0503/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0508/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0509/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-01/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-02/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-03/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-04/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-05/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0510-06/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0601/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0602/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0603/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0609/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0610/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0613/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0701/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0702/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0704/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0801/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0901/
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/utc/rules-comment/category/cja04-0902/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 3 



URJP015. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 15. Preliminary inquiry; informal adjustment without petition. 1 

(a) If a minor qualifies for a nonjudicial adjustment pursuant to statute, the probation 2 

officer must offer a nonjudicial adjustment to the minor. 3 

(b) If a minor does not qualify for a nonjudicial adjustment, the probation officer may 4 

conduct one or more interviews with the minor, or if a child, then with the child and at 5 

least one of the child’s parents, guardians, or custodians, and may invite the referring 6 

party and the victim, if any, to attend or otherwise seek further information from them. 7 

Attendance at any such interview is voluntary, and the probation officer may not compel 8 

the disclosure of any information or the visiting of any place. 9 

(c) In any such interview, the minor, or if a child, then the child and the child’s parent, 10 

guardian, or custodian, must be advised that the interview is voluntary, that the minor  11 

has the right to have counsel present to represent the minor, that the minor has the right 12 

not to disclose any information, and that any information disclosed that could tend to 13 

incriminate the minor cannot be used against the minor in court to prove whether the 14 

minor committed the offense alleged in the referral. 15 

(d) If, on the basis of the preliminary inquiry, the probation officer concludes that 16 

nonjudicial adjustment is appropriate and is authorized by law, the probation officer may 17 

seek agreement with the minor, or if a child, then with the child and the child’s parent, 18 

guardian, or custodian, to a proposed nonjudicial adjustment. If a minor seeks to decline 19 

a nonjudicial adjustment, the probation officer must inform the minor of the minor’s right 20 

to consult with counsel and the availability of resources with which to do so. 21 

(e) If an agreement is reached and the terms and conditions agreed upon are satisfactorily 22 

complied with by the minor, or if a child, then with the child and the child’s parent, 23 

guardian, or custodian, the case must be closed without petition. Such resolution of the 24 

case will not be deemed an adjudication of jurisdiction of the court and will not constitute 25 

an official record of juvenile court action or disposition. A nonjudicial adjustment may 26 

be considered by the probation officer in a subsequent preliminary inquiry and by the 27 



URJP015. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

court for purposes of disposition only, following adjudication of a subsequent 28 

delinquency involving the same minor. 29 

(f) The initial time in which to complete a nonjudicial adjustment, and any extensions 30 

thereof, are governed by Utah Code section 80-6-304. 31 



URJP015. Amend.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 15. Preliminary inquiry; informal adjustment without petition. 1 

(a) If a minor qualifies for a nonjudicial adjustment pursuant to statute, the probation 2 

officer must offer a nonjudicial adjustment to the minor. 3 

(b) If a minor does not qualify for a nonjudicial adjustment, the probation officer may 4 

conduct one or more interviews with the minor and may invite the referring party and 5 

the victim, if any, to attend or otherwise seek further information from them. Attendance 6 

at any such interview is voluntary, and the probation officer may not compel the 7 

disclosure of any information or the visiting of any place. 8 

(c) In any such interview, the minor must be advised that the interview is voluntary, that 9 

the minor  has the right to have counsel present to represent the minor, that the minor 10 

has the right not to disclose any information, and that any information disclosed that 11 

could tend to incriminate the minor cannot be used against the minor in court to prove 12 

whether the minor committed the offense alleged in the referral. 13 

(d) If, on the basis of the preliminary inquiry, the probation officer concludes that 14 

nonjudicial adjustment is appropriate and is authorized by law, the probation officer may 15 

seek agreement with the minor to a proposed nonjudicial adjustment. If a minor seeks to 16 

decline a nonjudicial adjustment, the probation officer must inform the minor of the 17 

minor’s right to consult with counsel and the availability of resources with which to do 18 

so. 19 

(e) If an agreement is reached and the terms and conditions agreed upon are satisfactorily 20 

complied with by the minor, the case must be closed without petition. Such resolution of 21 

the case will not be deemed an adjudication of jurisdiction of the court and will not 22 

constitute an official record of juvenile court action or disposition. A nonjudicial 23 

adjustment may be considered by the probation officer in a subsequent preliminary 24 

inquiry and by the court for purposes of disposition only, following adjudication of a 25 

subsequent delinquency involving the same minor. 26 



URJP015. Amend.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

(f) The initial time in which to complete a nonjudicial adjustment, and any extensions 27 

thereof, are governed by Utah Code section 80-6-304. 28 

Effective Date: 29 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 4 



URJP020A. Amend. Redline.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

Rule 20A. Discovery in non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings. 1 

(a) Scope of discovery. The scope of discovery in non-delinquency and non-criminal 2 

proceedings is governed by Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 26(b)(1) of the Utah Rules of Civil 3 

Procedure. Unless ordered by the court, no discovery obligation may be imposed upon a 4 

minor. 5 

(b) Disclosures. Within 14 days of the answer, a party shallmust, without awaiting a 6 

discovery request, make reasonable efforts to provide to other parties all information and 7 

documents necessary to support the party’sits claims or defenses. If a person is likely to 8 

have discoverable information supporting a party’s claim or defense, the party must 9 

identify the person’s name, the person’s address and telephone number, if known, and 10 

the subject of the information known to the party. A party need not provide information 11 

to be used, unless solely for impeachment, and a party need not identify a person whose 12 

or unless the identity of a person is protected by statute., identifying the subjects of the 13 

information. The party shall inform the other party of the existence of such records. 14 

(c) Depositions upon oral questions. After the filing of the answer is filed, a party may 15 

take the testimony of any person, including a party, by deposition upon oral question 16 

without leave of the court. Depositions shallmust be conducted pursuant to Utah R. Civ. 17 

P.Rule 30 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The record of the deposition shallmust be 18 

prepared pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 30(f) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except 19 

the deponent will have seven days to review the transcript or recording under Utah R. 20 

Civ. P.Rule 30(e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The use of depositions in court 21 

proceedings shall beis governed by Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 32 of the Utah Rules of Civil 22 

Procedure. 23 

(d) Interrogatories. After the filing of the answer is filed, interrogatories may be used 24 

pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 33 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that all 25 

answers shallmust be served within 14 days after service of the interrogatories. 26 



URJP020A. Amend. Redline.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

(e) Production of documents and things. After the filing of the answer is filed, requests 27 

for production of documents and things may be used pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 34 28 

of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that all responses shallmust be served within 29 

14 days after service of the requests. 30 

(f) Physical and mental examination of persons. Physical and mental examinations may 31 

be conducted pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 35 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 32 

(g) Requests for admission. After the answer is filed,Except as modified in this 33 

paragraph, requests for admission may be used pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 36 of the 34 

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that. T the matter shallwill be deemed admitted 35 

unless, within 14 days after service of the request, the party to whom the request is 36 

directed serves upon the requesting party a written answer or objection addressed to the 37 

matter, signed by the party or by histhe party’s attorney. Upon a showing of good cause, 38 

any matter deemed admitted may be withdrawn or amended upon the court’s own 39 

motion or the motion of any party. All requests for admission must include the following 40 

caution language at the top right corner of the first page of the document, in bold 41 

type: You must respond to these requests for admissions within 14 days or the court 42 

will consider you to have admitted the truth of the matter as set forth in these requests. 43 

Requests for admission can be served anytime following the filing of the answer. 44 

(h) Experts. 45 

(1) Adjudication trials. Any person who has been identified as an expert whose 46 

opinions may be presented at the adjudication trial must be disclosed by the party 47 

intending to present the witness at least ten days prior to the trial or hearing unless 48 

that time period is modified by the court. If ordered by the court, a summary of the 49 

proposed testimony signed by the party or the party’s attorney shallmust be filed at 50 

the same time. 51 

(2) Termination of parental rights trials. Any person who has been identified as an 52 

expert whose opinions may be presented at the termination of parental rights trial 53 



URJP020A. Amend. Redline.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

must be disclosed by the party intending to present the witness at least thirty30 days 54 

prior to the trial or hearing unless that time period is modified by the court. Unless an 55 

expert report has been provided, a summary of the proposed testimony signed by the 56 

party or the party’s attorney shallmust be filed at the same time. 57 

(3) A party may not present the testimony of an expert witness without complying 58 

with this paragraph (h) unless the court determines that good cause existed for the 59 

failure to disclose or to provide the summary of proposed testimony. 60 

(i) Protection from discovery.Protective orders.  Any party or person from whom 61 

discovery is sought may request an order protecting the party or person from discovery 62 

protective order pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 37(a)(b) of the Utah Rules of Civil 63 

Procedure. 64 

(j) Supplementaltion of responses. Parties have a duty to supplement responses and 65 

disclosures pursuant to Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 26(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 66 

(k) Failure to cooperate in discovery. As applicable, fFailure to cooperate with discovery 67 

shall beis governed by Utah R. Civ. P.Rule 37 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 68 

(l) No discovery canmay be taken that will interfere with the statutorily imposed time 69 

frames applicable to non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings as imposed by 70 

statute. 71 

(m) Subpoenas in non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings are governed by Utah 72 

R. Civ. P.Rule 45 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 73 

(n) In substantiation cases, no later than 30 days before trial, a party must provide to the 74 

other parties all information necessary to support its claims or defenses unless otherwise 75 

ordered by the court. 76 

(o) The court may, for good cause shown, order that the disclosure and discovery 77 

obligations in Rule 26.1 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure apply to non-delinquency 78 

and non-criminal proceedings. 79 



URJP020A. Amend. Redline.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

Effective Date: 80 



URJP020A. Amend.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

Rule 20A. Discovery in non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings. 1 

(a) Scope of discovery. The scope of discovery in non-delinquency and non-criminal 2 

proceedings is governed by Rule 26(b)(1) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Unless 3 

ordered by the court, no discovery obligation may be imposed upon a minor. 4 

(b) Disclosures. Within 14 days of the answer, a party must, without awaiting a discovery 5 

request, make reasonable efforts to provide to other parties all information and 6 

documents necessary to support the party’s claims or defenses. If a person is likely to 7 

have discoverable information supporting a party’s claim or defense, the party must 8 

identify the person’s name, the person’s address and telephone number, if known, and 9 

the subject of the information known to the party. A party need not provide information 10 

to be used solely for impeachment, and a party need not identify a person whose identity 11 

is protected by statute. 12 

(c) Depositions upon oral questions. After the  answer is filed, a party may take the 13 

testimony of any person, including a party, by deposition upon oral question without 14 

leave of the court. Depositions must be conducted pursuant to Rule 30 of the Utah Rules 15 

of Civil Procedure. The record of the deposition must be prepared pursuant to Rule 30(f) 16 

of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except the deponent will have seven days to review 17 

the transcript or recording under Rule 30(e) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The use 18 

of depositions in court proceedings is governed by Rule 32 of the Utah Rules of Civil 19 

Procedure. 20 

(d) Interrogatories. After the answer is filed, interrogatories may be used pursuant to 21 

Rule 33 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that all answers must be served within 22 

14 days after service of the interrogatories. 23 

(e) Production of documents and things. After the answer is filed, requests for 24 

production of documents and things may be used pursuant to Rule 34 of the Utah Rules 25 

of Civil Procedure except that all responses must be served within 14 days after service 26 

of the requests. 27 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=26
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=26
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=30
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=32
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=32
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=33
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=33
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=34
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=34


URJP020A. Amend.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

(f) Physical and mental examination of persons. Physical and mental examinations may 28 

be conducted pursuant to Rule 35 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 29 

(g) Requests for admission. After the answer is filed, requests for admission may be used 30 

pursuant to Rule 36 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that the matter will be 31 

deemed admitted unless, within 14 days after service of the request, the party to whom 32 

the request is directed serves upon the requesting party a written answer or objection 33 

addressed to the matter, signed by the party or by the party’s attorney. Upon a showing 34 

of good cause, any matter deemed admitted may be withdrawn or amended upon the 35 

court’s own motion or the motion of any party. All requests for admission must include 36 

the following caution language at the top right corner of the first page of the document, 37 

in bold type: You must respond to these requests for admissions within 14 days or the 38 

court will consider you to have admitted the truth of the matter as set forth in these 39 

requests. 40 

(h) Experts. 41 

(1) Adjudication trials. Any person who has been identified as an expert whose 42 

opinions may be presented at the adjudication trial must be disclosed by the party 43 

intending to present the witness at least ten days prior to the trial or hearing unless 44 

that time period is modified by the court. If ordered by the court, a summary of the 45 

proposed testimony signed by the party or the party’s attorney must be filed at the 46 

same time. 47 

(2) Termination of parental rights trials. Any person who has been identified as an 48 

expert whose opinions may be presented at the termination of parental rights trial 49 

must be disclosed by the party intending to present the witness at least 30 days prior 50 

to the trial or hearing unless that time period is modified by the court. Unless an 51 

expert report has been provided, a summary of the proposed testimony signed by the 52 

party or the party’s attorney must be filed at the same time. 53 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=35
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=35
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=36
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=36


URJP020A. Amend.  Draft: November 12, 2025 

(3) A party may not present the testimony of an expert witness without complying 54 

with this paragraph (h) unless the court determines that good cause existed for the 55 

failure to disclose or to provide the summary of proposed testimony. 56 

(i) Protection from discovery. Any party or person from whom discovery is sought may 57 

request an order protecting the party or person from discovery pursuant to Rule 37(a) of 58 

the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 59 

(j) Supplemental responses. Parties have a duty to supplement responses and 60 

disclosures pursuant to Rule 26(d) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 61 

(k) Failure to cooperate in discovery. Failure to cooperate with discovery is governed by 62 

Rule 37 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 63 

(l) No discovery may be taken that will interfere with the time frames applicable to non-64 

delinquency and non-criminal proceedings as imposed by statute. 65 

(m) Subpoenas in non-delinquency and non-criminal proceedings are governed by Rule 66 

45 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. 67 

(n) In substantiation cases, no later than 30 days before trial, a party must provide to the 68 

other parties all information necessary to support its claims or defenses unless otherwise 69 

ordered by the court. 70 

(o) The court may, for good cause shown, order that the disclosure and discovery 71 

obligations in Rule 26.1 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure apply to non-delinquency 72 

and non-criminal proceedings. 73 

Effective Date: 74 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=37
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=37
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=26
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=26
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=37
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=37
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=45
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=45
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=45
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=26.1


TAB 5 



URJP022. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 22. Initial appearance and preliminary hearing in cases under Utah Code sections 1 

80-6-503 and 80-6-504. 2 

(a) When a summons is issued in lieu of a warrant of arrest, the minor must appear before 3 

the court as directed in the summons. 4 

(b) When any peace officer or other person makes an arrest of a minor without a warrant, 5 

the minor must be taken to a juvenile detention facility pending a detention hearing, 6 

which must be held as provided by these rules. When any peace officer makes an arrest 7 

of a minor with a warrant, the minor must be taken to the place designated on the 8 

warrant. If an information has not been filed, one must be filed without delay in the court 9 

with jurisdiction over the offense. 10 

(c) If a minor is arrested in a county other than where the offense was committed the 11 

minor must without unnecessary delay be returned to the county where the crime was 12 

committed and must be taken before a judge of the juvenile court. 13 

(d) The court will, upon the minor’s first appearance, inform the minor: 14 

(1) of the charge in the information or indictment and furnish the minor with a copy; 15 

(2) of any affidavit or recorded testimony given in support of the information and 16 

how to obtain them; 17 

(3) of the right to retain counsel or have counsel appointed by the court; 18 

(4) of rights concerning detention, pretrial release, and bail in the event the minor is 19 

bound over to stand trial in district court; and 20 

(5) that the minor is not required to make any statement, and that any statements 21 

made may be used against the minor in a court of law. 22 

(e) The court will, after providing the information under paragraph (d) and before 23 

proceeding further, allow the minor reasonable time and opportunity to consult counsel 24 

and will allow the minor to contact any attorney by any reasonable means, without delay 25 

and without fee. 26 



URJP022. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

(f) The minor may not be called on to enter a plea. During the initial appearance, the 27 

minor will be advised of the right to a preliminary hearing. If the minor waives the right 28 

to a preliminary hearing, the court will proceed in accordance with Rule 23A to hear 29 

evidence regarding the factors contained in Utah Code section 80-6-504(3). 30 

(g) Preliminary Hearing; time for hearing. If the minor does not waive a preliminary 31 

hearing, the court will schedule the preliminary hearing. The preliminary hearing will be 32 

held within a reasonable time, but not later than ten14 days after the initial appearance if 33 

the minor is in custody for the offense charged. If the minor is not in custody, Tthe 34 

preliminary hearing will be held within a reasonable time, but not later than 3028 days 35 

after the initial appearance if the minor is not in custody. The time periods of this rule 36 

may be extended by the court for good cause shown. 37 

(h) If a grand jury indicts a minor for a qualifying offense listed in Utah Code section 80-38 

6-503, the court will proceed in accordance with Utah Code section 80-6-504(11). 39 

(i) A preliminary hearing will be held under the rules and laws applicable to criminal 40 

cases tried before a court. The state has the burden of proof and will proceed first with its 41 

case. At the conclusion of the state’s case, the minor may testify under oath, call witnesses, 42 

and present evidence. The minor may cross-examine adverse witnesses. 43 

(j) If from the evidence the court finds probable cause under Utah Code section 80-6-44 

504(2)(a), the court will proceed in accordance with Rule 23A to hear evidence regarding 45 

the factors contained in Utah Code section 80-6-504(3). 46 

(k) The finding of probable cause may be based, in whole or in part, on reliable hearsay.  47 

Objections to evidence on the ground that it was acquired by unlawful means may not 48 

be raised at the preliminary hearing. 49 

(l) If the court does not find probable cause to believe that the crime charged has been 50 

committed or that the minor committed it, the court will dismiss the information and 51 

discharge the minor. The court may enter findings of fact, conclusions of law, and an 52 



URJP022. Amend. Redline.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

order of dismissal. The dismissal and discharge do not preclude the state from instituting 53 

a subsequent prosecution for the same offense. 54 

(m) At a preliminary hearing, upon request of either party, and subject to Title 77, Chapter 55 

38, Rights of Crime Victims Act, the court may: 56 

(1) exclude witnesses from the courtroom; 57 

(2) require witnesses not to converse with each other until the preliminary hearing is 58 

concluded; and 59 

(3) exclude spectators from the courtroom.  60 

Effective Date: 61 



URJP022. Amend.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

Rule 22. Initial appearance and preliminary hearing in cases under Utah Code sections 1 

80-6-503 and 80-6-504. 2 

(a) When a summons is issued in lieu of a warrant of arrest, the minor must appear before 3 

the court as directed in the summons. 4 

(b) When any peace officer or other person makes an arrest of a minor without a warrant, 5 

the minor must be taken to a juvenile detention facility pending a detention hearing, 6 

which must be held as provided by these rules. When any peace officer makes an arrest 7 

of a minor with a warrant, the minor must be taken to the place designated on the 8 

warrant. If an information has not been filed, one must be filed without delay in the court 9 

with jurisdiction over the offense. 10 

(c) If a minor is arrested in a county other than where the offense was committed the 11 

minor must without unnecessary delay be returned to the county where the crime was 12 

committed and must be taken before a judge of the juvenile court. 13 

(d) The court will, upon the minor’s first appearance, inform the minor: 14 

(1) of the charge in the information or indictment and furnish the minor with a copy; 15 

(2) of any affidavit or recorded testimony given in support of the information and 16 

how to obtain them; 17 

(3) of the right to retain counsel or have counsel appointed by the court; 18 

(4) of rights concerning detention, pretrial release, and bail in the event the minor is 19 

bound over to stand trial in district court; and 20 

(5) that the minor is not required to make any statement, and that any statements 21 

made may be used against the minor in a court of law. 22 

(e) The court will, after providing the information under paragraph (d) and before 23 

proceeding further, allow the minor reasonable time and opportunity to consult counsel 24 

and will allow the minor to contact any attorney by any reasonable means, without delay 25 

and without fee. 26 



URJP022. Amend.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

(f) The minor may not be called on to enter a plea. During the initial appearance, the 27 

minor will be advised of the right to a preliminary hearing. If the minor waives the right 28 

to a preliminary hearing, the court will proceed in accordance with Rule 23A to hear 29 

evidence regarding the factors contained in Utah Code section 80-6-504(3). 30 

(g) Preliminary Hearing; time for hearing. If the minor does not waive a preliminary 31 

hearing, the court will schedule the hearing. The preliminary hearing will be held within 32 

a reasonable time, but not later than 14 days after the initial appearance if the minor is in 33 

custody for the offense charged. If the minor is not in custody, the preliminary hearing 34 

will be held within a reasonable time, but not later than 28 days after the initial 35 

appearance. The time periods of this rule may be extended by the court for good cause 36 

shown. 37 

(h) If a grand jury indicts a minor for a qualifying offense listed in Utah Code section 80-38 

6-503, the court will proceed in accordance with Utah Code section 80-6-504(11). 39 

(i) A preliminary hearing will be held under the rules and laws applicable to criminal 40 

cases tried before a court. The state has the burden of proof and will proceed first with its 41 

case. At the conclusion of the state's case, the minor may testify under oath, call witnesses, 42 

and present evidence. The minor may cross-examine adverse witnesses. 43 

(j) If from the evidence the court finds probable cause under Utah Code section 80-6-44 

504(2)(a), the court will proceed in accordance with Rule 23A to hear evidence regarding 45 

the factors contained in Utah Code section 80-6-504(3). 46 

(k) The finding of probable cause may be based, in whole or in part, on reliable hearsay.  47 

Objections to evidence on the ground that it was acquired by unlawful means may not 48 

be raised at the preliminary hearing. 49 

(l) If the court does not find probable cause to believe that the crime charged has been 50 

committed or that the minor committed it, the court will dismiss the information and 51 

discharge the minor. The court may enter findings of fact, conclusions of law, and an 52 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=23A
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urjp&rule=23A


URJP022. Amend.  Draft: October 10, 2025 

order of dismissal. The dismissal and discharge do not preclude the state from instituting 53 

a subsequent prosecution for the same offense. 54 

(m) At a preliminary hearing, upon request of either party, and subject to Title 77, Chapter 55 

38, Rights of Crime Victims Act, the court may: 56 

(1) exclude witnesses from the courtroom; 57 

(2) require witnesses not to converse with each other until the preliminary hearing is 58 

concluded; and 59 

(3) exclude spectators from the courtroom.  60 

Effective Date: 61 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 6 



URJP018. Amend. Redline.   Draft: December 31, 2025 

Rule 18. Summons; service of process; notice. 1 

(a) Summons. Upon the filing of a petition, the clerk, unless otherwise directed by the 2 

court, will schedule an initial hearing in the case.  3 

(1) A Ssummons may be issued by the petitioning attorney. If the petitioning attorney 4 

does not issue a summons, a summons will be issued by the clerk in accordance with 5 

Utah Code section 78A-6-351. The summons must conform to the format prescribed 6 

by these rules. 7 

(2) Content of the summons. 8 

(A) Abuse, neglect, and dependency cases. The summons must contain the name 9 

and address of the court;, the title of the proceeding;, the type of hearing 10 

scheduled;, and the date, place, and time of the hearing scheduled pursuant to 11 

subparagraph (a). It must state the time within which the respondent is required 12 

to answer the petition, and must notify the respondent that judgment by default 13 

may be rendered against the respondent if the respondentin the case of the failsure 14 

to timely do so, judgment by default may be rendered against the respondent. It 15 

must contain an abbreviated reference to the substance of the petition. It must 16 

include the bilingual notice set forth in the juvenile form summons approved by 17 

the Utah Judicial Council. 18 

(B) Termination of parental rights cases. The summons must contain the name 19 

and address of the court;, the title of the proceeding;, the type of hearing 20 

scheduled;, and the date, place, and time of the hearing. It must state the time 21 

within which the respondent is required to answer the petition. It must contain an 22 

abbreviated reference to the substance of the petition. It must include the bilingual 23 

notice set forth in the juvenile form summons approved by the Utah Judicial 24 

Council. 25 

(C) Other cases. The summons must contain the name and address of the court, 26 

the title of the proceeding, the type of hearing scheduled, and the date, place, and 27 



URJP018. Amend. Redline.   Draft: December 31, 2025 

time of the hearing. It must also contain an abbreviated reference to the substance 28 

of the petition. In proceedings against an adult pursuant to Utah Code section 78A-29 

6-450, the summons must conform to Rule 6 of the Utah Rules of Criminal 30 

Procedure and be issued by the prosecuting attorney.  31 

(3) The summons must be directed to the person or persons who have physical care, 32 

control, or custody of the minor and require them to appear and bring the minor 33 

before the court. If the person so summoned is not the parent, guardian, or custodian 34 

of the minor, a summons must also be issued to the parent, guardian, or custodian. If 35 

the minor or person who is the subject of the petition has been emancipated by 36 

marriage or is 18 years of age or older at the time the petition is filed, the summons 37 

may require the appearance of the minor only, unless otherwise ordered by the court. 38 

In neglect, abuse, and dependency cases, unless otherwise directed by the court, the 39 

summons must not require the appearance of the subject minor.  40 

(4) No summons is necessary as to any party who appears voluntarily or who files a 41 

written waiver of service with the clerk prior to or upon appearance at the hearing.  42 

(b) Service.  43 

(1) Except as otherwise provided by these rules or by statute, service of process and 44 

proof of service must be made by the methods provided in Rule 4 of Utah Rules of 45 

Civil Procedure. Service of process must be made by the sheriff of the county where 46 

the service is to be made, by a deputy, by a process server, or by any other suitable 47 

person appointed by the court. However, when the court so directs, an agent of the 48 

Department of Health and Human Services may serve process in a case in which the 49 

Department is a party. A party or party’s attorney may serve another party at a court 50 

hearing. The record of the proceeding will reflect the service of the document and will 51 

constitute the proof of service.  52 

(2) Personal service may be made upon a parent, guardian, or custodian and upon a 53 

minor in that person’s legal custody by delivering to a parent, guardian, or custodian 54 



URJP018. Amend. Redline.   Draft: December 31, 2025 

a copy of the summons with a copy of the petition attached. If a minor is in the legal 55 

custody or guardianship of an agency or person other than a parent, service must also 56 

be made by delivering to the legal custodian a copy of the summons with a copy of 57 

the petition attached and notice must be given to the parent as provided in paragraph 58 

(d). Service upon a minor who has attained majority by marriage as provided in Utah 59 

Code Ssection 15-2-1 or upon court order must be made in the manner provided in 60 

Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.  61 

(3) Service may be made by any form of mail requiring a signed receipt by the 62 

addressee. Service is complete upon return to court of the signed receipt. Service of 63 

process may be made by depositing a copy thereof in the United States mail addressed 64 

to the last known address of the person to be served. Any person who appears in court 65 

in response to mailed service is considered to have been legally served.  66 

(4) In any proceeding wherein the parent, guardian, or custodian cannot after the 67 

exercise of reasonable diligence be located for personal service, the court may proceed 68 

to adjudicate the matter subject to the right of the parent, guardian, or custodian to a 69 

rehearing, except that in certification proceedings brought pursuant to Title 80, 70 

Chapter 6, Part 5, Transfer to District Court and in proceedings seeking permanent 71 

termination of parental rights, the court will order service upon the parent, guardian, 72 

or custodian by publication. Any rehearing must be requested by written motion.  73 

(5) Service must be completed at least 48 hours prior to the adjudicatory hearing. If 74 

the summons is for the permanent termination of parental rights, service must be 75 

completed at least ten days before the adjudicatory hearing. If the summons is for a 76 

substantiation proceeding, service must be completed at least 45 days before the 77 

adjudicatory hearing.  78 

(c) Service by publication. Service by publication must be authorized by the procedure 79 

and in the form provided by the Utah Juvenile Code section 78B-6-1206 and Rule 4 of 80 

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure except that within the caption and the body of any 81 

published document, children must be identified by their initials and respective birth 82 



URJP018. Amend. Redline.   Draft: December 31, 2025 

dates, and not by their names. The parent, guardian, or custodian of each child must be 83 

identified as such using their full names within the caption of any published document.  84 

(d) Notice of further proceedings.  85 

(1) Notice of the time, date, and place of any further proceedings, after an initial 86 

appearance or service of a summons, may be given in open court or, by mail, or by 87 

email to any party. Notice is sufficient if the clerkit is depositeds the notice in the 88 

United States mail, postage pre-paid, to the address provided by the party in court or 89 

the address at which the party was initially served or one provided by a party 90 

pursuant to subparagraph (d)(2), or, if sends notice is sent to thean email address 91 

provided by thea party pursuant to subparagraph (d)(2)in court if the or to the email 92 

address provided pursuant to Rule 10 or Rule 76 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 93 

party has agreed to accept service by email, sends notice to the email address 94 

provided by the party.  95 

(2) At an the initial hearing when a party first appears, the court will inquire regarding 96 

may obtain the party’s preferred method to receive of notice. Service should be 97 

effectuated by the method most likely to be promptly received, presumptively the 98 

party’s preferred method.   99 

(32) Notice for any party represented by counsel must be given to counsel for the party 100 

through either mail, notice given in open court, or by email to the email address on 101 

file with the Utah State Bar.  102 

(e) Additional parties. Whenever it appears to the court that a person who is not the 103 

parent, guardian, or custodian should be made subject to the jurisdiction and authority 104 

of the court in a minor’s case, upon the motion of any party or the court’s own motion, 105 

the court may issue a summons ordering such person to appear. Upon the appearance of 106 

such person, the court may enter an order making suchthe person a party to the 107 

proceeding and may order suchthe person to comply with reasonable conditions as a part 108 



URJP018. Amend. Redline.   Draft: December 31, 2025 

of the disposition in the minor’s case. Upon the request of such person, the court will 109 

conduct a hearing upon the issue of whether suchthe person should be made a party.  110 

(f) Service of pleadings and other papers.  Except as otherwise provided by these rules 111 

or by statute, service of pleadings and other papers not requiring a summons must be 112 

made by the methods provided in Rule 5 of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure., except that 113 

service to the email address on file with the Utah State Bar is sufficient service to an 114 

attorney under this rule, whether or not an attorney agrees to accept service by email.  115 

(g) Access to the Juvenile Court’s Court and Agency Records Exchange (C.A.R.E.) for 116 

eFiling documents does not constitute an electronic filing account as referenced in Rule 5 117 

of the Rules of Civil Procedure.  eFiling in C.A.R.E. does not constitute service upon a 118 

party. 119 



URJP018. Amend.  Draft: December 31, 2025 

Rule 18. Summons; service of process; notice. 1 

(a) Summons. Upon the filing of a petition, the clerk, unless otherwise directed by the 2 

court, will schedule an initial hearing in the case.  3 

(1) A summons may be issued by the petitioning attorney. If the petitioning attorney 4 

does not issue a summons, a summons will be issued by the clerk in accordance with 5 

Utah Code section 78A-6-351. The summons must conform to the format prescribed 6 

by these rules. 7 

(2) Content of summons. 8 

(A) Abuse, neglect, and dependency cases. The summons must contain the name 9 

and address of the court; the title of the proceeding; the type of hearing scheduled; 10 

and the date, place, and time of the hearing scheduled pursuant to subparagraph 11 

(a). It must state the time within which the respondent is required to answer the 12 

petition, and must notify the respondent that judgment by default may be 13 

rendered against the respondent if the respondent fails to timely do so. It must 14 

contain an abbreviated reference to the substance of the petition. It must include 15 

the bilingual notice set forth in the juvenile form summons approved by the Utah 16 

Judicial Council. 17 

(B) Termination of parental rights cases. The summons must contain the name 18 

and address of the court; the title of the proceeding; the type of hearing scheduled; 19 

and the date, place, and time of the hearing. It must state the time within which 20 

the respondent is required to answer the petition. It must contain an abbreviated 21 

reference to the substance of the petition. It must include the bilingual notice set 22 

forth in the juvenile form summons approved by the Utah Judicial Council. 23 

(C) Other cases. The summons must contain the name and address of the court, 24 

the title of the proceeding, the type of hearing scheduled, and the date, place, and 25 

time of the hearing. It must also contain an abbreviated reference to the substance 26 

of the petition. In proceedings against an adult pursuant to Utah Code section 78A-27 



URJP018. Amend.  Draft: December 31, 2025 

6-450, the summons must conform to Rule 6 of the Utah Rules of Criminal 28 

Procedure and be issued by the prosecuting attorney.  29 

(3) The summons must be directed to the person or persons who have physical care, 30 

control, or custody of the minor and require them to appear and bring the minor 31 

before the court. If the person so summoned is not the parent, guardian, or custodian 32 

of the minor, a summons must also be issued to the parent, guardian, or custodian. If 33 

the minor or person who is the subject of the petition has been emancipated by 34 

marriage or is 18 years of age or older at the time the petition is filed, the summons 35 

may require the appearance of the minor only, unless otherwise ordered by the court. 36 

In neglect, abuse, and dependency cases, unless otherwise directed by the court, the 37 

summons must not require the appearance of the subject minor.  38 

(4) No summons is necessary as to any party who appears voluntarily or who files a 39 

written waiver of service with the clerk prior to or upon appearance at the hearing.  40 

(b) Service.  41 

(1) Except as otherwise provided by these rules or by statute, service of process and 42 

proof of service must be made by the methods provided in Rule 4 of Utah Rules of 43 

Civil Procedure. Service of process must be made by the sheriff of the county where 44 

the service is to be made, by a deputy, by a process server, or by any other suitable 45 

person appointed by the court. However, when the court so directs, an agent of the 46 

Department of Health and Human Services may serve process in a case in which the 47 

Department is a party. A party or party’s attorney may serve another party at a court 48 

hearing. The record of the proceeding will reflect the service of the document and will 49 

constitute the proof of service.  50 

(2) Personal service may be made upon a parent, guardian, or custodian and upon a 51 

minor in that person’s legal custody by delivering to a parent, guardian, or custodian 52 

a copy of the summons with a copy of the petition attached. If a minor is in the legal 53 

custody or guardianship of an agency or person other than a parent, service must also 54 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcrp&rule=6
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=4


URJP018. Amend.  Draft: December 31, 2025 

be made by delivering to the legal custodian a copy of the summons with a copy of 55 

the petition attached and notice must be given to the parent as provided in paragraph 56 

(d). Service upon a minor who has attained majority by marriage as provided in Utah 57 

Code section 15-2-1 or upon court order must be made in the manner provided in 58 

Rule 4 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.  59 

(3) Service may be made by any form of mail requiring a signed receipt by the 60 

addressee. Service is complete upon return to court of the signed receipt. Service of 61 

process may be made by depositing a copy thereof in the United States mail addressed 62 

to the last known address of the person to be served. Any person who appears in court 63 

in response to mailed service is considered to have been legally served.  64 

(4) In any proceeding wherein the parent, guardian, or custodian cannot after the 65 

exercise of reasonable diligence be located for personal service, the court may proceed 66 

to adjudicate the matter subject to the right of the parent, guardian, or custodian to a 67 

rehearing, except that in certification proceedings brought pursuant to Title 80, 68 

Chapter 6, Part 5, Transfer to District Court and in proceedings seeking permanent 69 

termination of parental rights, the court will order service upon the parent, guardian, 70 

or custodian by publication. Any rehearing must be requested by written motion.  71 

(5) Service must be completed at least 48 hours prior to the adjudicatory hearing. If 72 

the summons is for the permanent termination of parental rights, service must be 73 

completed at least ten days before the adjudicatory hearing. If the summons is for a 74 

substantiation proceeding, service must be completed at least 45 days before the 75 

adjudicatory hearing.  76 

(c) Service by publication. Service by publication must be authorized by the procedure 77 

and in the form provided by Utah Code section 78B-6-1206 and Rule 4 of Utah Rules of 78 

Civil Procedure except that within the caption and the body of any published document, 79 

children must be identified by their initials and respective birth dates, and not by their 80 

names. The parent, guardian, or custodian of each child must be identified as such using 81 

their full names within the caption of any published document.  82 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=4
https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=4


URJP018. Amend.  Draft: December 31, 2025 

(d) Notice of further proceedings.  83 

(1) Notice of the time, date, and place of any further proceedings, after an initial 84 

appearance or service of a summons, may be given in open court, by mail, or by email 85 

to any party. Notice is sufficient if it is deposited in the United States mail, postage 86 

pre-paid, to the address provided by the party in court or the address at which the 87 

party was initially served or one provided by a party pursuant to subparagraph (d)(2), 88 

or if notice is sent to an email address provided by a party pursuant to subparagraph 89 

(d)(2).  90 

(2) At an  initial hearing when a party first appears, the court  may obtain the party’s 91 

preferred method to receive  notice. Service should be effectuated by the method most 92 

likely to be promptly received, presumptively the party’s preferred method.  93 

(3) Notice for any party represented by counsel must be given to counsel for the party 94 

through either mail, notice given in open court, or by email to the email address on 95 

file with the Utah State Bar.  96 

(e) Additional parties. Whenever it appears to the court that a person who is not the 97 

parent, guardian, or custodian should be made subject to the jurisdiction and authority 98 

of the court in a minor’s case, upon the motion of any party or the court’s own motion, 99 

the court may issue a summons ordering such person to appear. Upon the appearance of 100 

such person, the court may enter an order making the person a party to the proceeding 101 

and may order the person to comply with reasonable conditions as a part of the 102 

disposition in the minor’s case. Upon the request of such person, the court will conduct 103 

a hearing upon the issue of whether the person should be made a party.  104 

(f) Service of pleadings and other papers.  Except as otherwise provided by these rules 105 

or by statute, service of pleadings and other papers not requiring a summons must be 106 

made by the methods provided in Rule 5 of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Access to the 107 

Juvenile Court’s Court and Agency Records Exchange (C.A.R.E.) for eFiling documents 108 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=5


URJP018. Amend.  Draft: December 31, 2025 

does not constitute an electronic filing account as referenced in Rule 5 of the Rules of Civil 109 

Procedure.  eFiling in C.A.R.E. does not constitute service upon a party. 110 

https://legacy.utcourts.gov/rules/view.php?type=urcp&rule=5


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 7 



URJP020. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 21, 2025 

Rule 20. Discovery generallyand subpoenas in delinquency and criminal proceedings. 1 

(a) Discovery involving adjudications of delinquency, offenses by adults against minors, 2 

and proceedings brought pursuant to Title 80, Chapter 6, Part 5 , Transfer to District Court 3 

shallmust be conducted in accordance with Rule 16 of the Utah Rules of Criminal 4 

Procedure, except where limited by these rules, the Code of Judicial Administration, or 5 

the Utah Juvenile Code. 6 

(b) Subpoenas used in adjudications of delinquency, offenses by adults against minors, 7 

and proceedings pursuant to Title 80, Chapter 6, Part 5 are governed by Rule 14 of the 8 

Utah Rules of Criminal Procedure.In substantiation cases, no later than thirty days prior 9 

to trial, parties shall provide to each other information necessary to support its claims or 10 

defenses unless otherwise ordered by the court. 11 

(c)  Rule 26.1 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure does not apply in any juvenile 12 

proceedings unless there is a showing of good cause and it is ordered by the court.  13 

(d) In all other cases, discovery shall be conducted pursuant to these rules unless 14 

modified by a showing of good cause and by order of the court.  15 

Option 1 – Borrow language from 77-17-13. 16 

(c) Expert testimony; notice requirements. 17 

(1) If the prosecution or the minor intends to call any expert to testify in a felony case 18 

at trial or any hearing, the party intending to call the expert must give notice to the 19 

opposing party as soon as practicable but not less than 30 days before trial or 10 days 20 

before the hearing. Notice must include the name and address of the expert, the 21 

expert’s curriculum vitae, and one of the following: 22 

(A) a copy of the expert’s report, if one exists; or 23 

(B) a written explanation of the expert’s proposed testimony sufficient to give the 24 

party adequate notice to prepare to meet the testimony; and  25 



URJP020. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 21, 2025 

(C) a notice that the expert is available to cooperatively consult with the opposing 26 

party on a reasonable notice. 27 

(2) If an expert’s anticipated testimony will be based in whole or part on the results of 28 

any tests or other specialized data, the party intending to call the witness must 29 

provide to the opposing party the information upon request.  30 

(3) As soon as practicable after receipt of the expert’s report or the information 31 

concerning the expert’s proposed testimony, the party receiving notice must provide 32 

to the other party notice of witnesses whom the party anticipates calling to rebut the 33 

expert’s testimony, including the information required under subparagraph (c)(1). 34 

(4) Failure to comply. 35 

(A) If the minor or the prosecution fails to substantially comply with the 36 

requirements of this section, the opposing party must, if necessary to prevent 37 

substantial prejudice, be entitled to a continuance of the trial or hearing sufficient 38 

to allow preparation to meet the testimony. 39 

(B) If the court finds that the failure to comply with this section is the result of bad 40 

faith on the part of any party or attorney, the court will impose appropriate 41 

sanctions. The remedy of the exclusion of the expert’s testimony will only apply if 42 

the court finds that a party deliberately violated the provisions of this section. 43 

(5) This section does not apply to the use of an expert who is an employee of the state 44 

or its political subdivisions, so long at the opposing party is on reasonable notice 45 

through general discovery that the expert may be called as a witness at trial, and the 46 

witness is the made available to cooperatively consult with the opposing party upon 47 

reasonable notice. 48 

 49 

 50 

 51 



URJP020. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 21, 2025 

Option 2 – Borrow language from Rule 20A(h). 52 

(c) Experts.  53 

(A) Adjudication trials and hearings pursuant to Title 80, Chapter 6, Part 5. Any 54 

person who has been identified as an expert whose opinions may be presented at 55 

trial or at the preliminary hearing must be disclosed by the party intending to 56 

present the witness at least 30 days prior to the trial or hearing unless modified by 57 

the court. Unless an expert report has been provided, a summary of the proposed 58 

testimony signed by the party or the party’s attorney must be filed at the same 59 

time. 60 

(B) Motions. Any person who has been identified as an expert whose opinions 61 

may be presented at the adjudication trial must be disclosed by the party intending 62 

to present the witness at least 14 days prior to the trial or hearing unless modified 63 

by the court. If ordered by the court, a summary of the proposed testimony signed 64 

by the party or the party’s attorney must be filed at the same time.  65 

 66 

Option 3 – Refer to 77-17-13. 67 

(c) Expert notice in adjudications of delinquency, offenses by adults against minors, and 68 

proceedings pursuant to Title 80, Chapter 6, Part 5 must adhere to the provisions of Utah 69 

Code section 77-17-13. 70 



TAB 8 



URJP021. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 20, 2025 

Rule 21. Warrant of arrest or summons in cases subject to bindoverunder Utah Code 

section 80-6-503. 

(a) Upon the return of an indictment alleging the commission of a felony governed by 

Utah Code section 80-6-503, the court shallwill issue either a warrant for the arrest or a 

summons for the appearance of the minor. 

(b) Upon the filing of an information alleging the commission of a felony governed by 

Utah Code section 80-6-503, if it appears from the information, or from any affidavit filed 

with the information, that there is probable cause to believe that an offense governed by 

this section has been committed and that the minor has committed it, the court shallwill 

issue either a warrant for the arrest or a summons for the appearance of the minor. 

(c) If it appears to the court that the minor will appear on a summons and there is no 

substantial danger of a breach of the peace, or injury to persons or property, or danger to 

the community, a summons may issue in lieu of a warrant of arrest to require the 

appearance of the minor. A warrant of arrest may issue in cases where the minor has 

failed to appear in response to a summons or citation or thereafter when required by the 

court. If a warrant of arrest is issued, the court shallwill state on the warrant: 

(1) the name of the law enforcement agency in the county or municipality with 

jurisdiction over the offense charged; and 

(2) whether the minor is to be taken to court, a detention facility, or a correctional 

facility. 

(d) The warrant shallmust be executed by a peace officer. The summons may be served 

by a peace officer or any person authorized to serve a summons in a civil action. 

(1) The warrant may be executed or the summons may be served at any place within 

the state. 

(2) The warrant shallmust be executed by the arrest of the minor. The officer need not 

possess the warrant at the time of the arrest, but upon request shallmust show the 

warrant to the minor as soon as practicable. If the officer does not possess the warrant 



URJP021. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 20, 2025 

at the time of the arrest, the officer shallmust inform the minor of the offense charged 

and of the fact that the warrant has been issued. The summons shallmust be served as 

in civil actions, or by mailing it to the minor's last known address. 

(3) The person executing a warrant or serving a summons shallmust make return 

thereof to the juvenile court as soon as practicable. At the request of the prosecuting 

attorney, any unexecuted warrant shallmust be returned to the court for cancellation. 

Effective Date:  



URJP023A. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 20, 2025 

Rule 23A. Hearing on factors of Utah Code section 80-6-503; bind over to district court. 

(a) If a criminal indictment under Utah Code section 80-6-503 alleges the commission of 

a felony, the court shallwill, hear evidence and consider the factors in paragraph (b). 

(b) If a criminal information under Utah Code section 80-6-503 alleges the commission of 

a felony, after a finding of probable cause in accordance with Rule 22, the court shallwill 

hear evidence and consider the factors and make findings on: 

(1) the seriousness of the qualifying offense and whether the protection of the 

community requires that the minor be detained beyond the amount of time allowed 

under Utah Code section 80-6-601802, or beyond the age of continuing jurisdiction 

that the court may exercise under Utah Code section 80-6-605; 

(2) the extent to which the minor’s actions in the qualifying offense were committed 

in an aggressive, violent, premeditated, or willful manner; 

(3) the minor’s mental, physical, educational, trauma, and social history; 

(4) the criminal record or history of the minor; and 

(5) the likelihood of the minor’s rehabilitation by the use of services and facilities that 

are available to the juvenile court. 

(c) The court may consider any written report or other materials that relate to the minor’s 

mental, physical, educational, trauma, and social history.  Upon request by the minor, the 

minor’s parent, guardian, or other interested party, the court shallwill require the person 

preparing the report, or other material, to appear and be subject to direct and cross-

examination. 

(d) At the preliminary examinationhearing the minor may testify under oath, call 

witnesses, cross examine witnesses, and present evidence on the factors described in 

paragraph (b).   

(e) If the court does not finds by a preponderance of the evidence that it would beis 

contrary to the best interests of the minor and the best interests of the public to bind the 



URJP023A. Amend. Redline.   Draft: November 20, 2025 

minor over to the jurisdiction of the district courtfor the juvenile court to retain 

jurisdiction over the offense, the court shallwill enter an order directing the minor to 

answer the charges in district court. 

(f) Upon entry of an order directing the minor to answer the charges in district court, the 

court shallwill comply with the requirements of Title 77, Chapter 20, Bail. By issuance of 

a warrant of arrest or continuance of an existing warrant, the court shallwill make an 

initial determination on where the minor is held until the time of trial. The court shallwill 

enter the appropriate written order. 

(1) Once the minor is bound over to district court, a determination regarding where 

the minor is held shallwill be made pursuant to Utah Code section 80-6-504. 

(2) The clerk of the juvenile court shallwill transmit to the clerk of the district court all 

pleadings in and records made of the proceedings in the juvenile court. 

(3) The jurisdiction of the court shallwill terminate as provided by statute. 

(g) If the court finds probable cause to believe that a felony has been committed and that 

the minor committed it and also finds that it would be in the best interests of the minor 

and the public for the juvenile court to retain jurisdiction over the offense, the court 

shallwill proceed upon the information as if it were a petition. The court may order the 

minor held in a detention center or released in accordance with Rule 9. 

Effective Date: 



TAB 9 



URCP Rule 103 NEW Draft: 08.20.2025 

Rule 103. Child protective orders. 1 

Effective: mm/dd/yyyy 2 

(a) Scope. This rule applies when a juvenile court transfers a petition for a child protective 3 

order      to the district court pursuant to statute.  4 

(b) Definition. As used in this rule, “child” means an individual who is under 18 years 5 

old. 6 

(c) Hearing. If the juvenile court issued an ex parte child protective order before 7 

transferring the petition, the district court will hold a hearing within 21 days of that 8 

protective order’s issuance.       9 

(d) Child’s Testimony. No party may compel a child to testify unless the court finds that 10 

extenuating circumstances exist that would necessitate the testimony of the child be 11 

heard and there is no other reasonable method to present the child’s testimony. A child’s 12 

testimony may be presented in one or more of the following ways: 13 

(1) Recorded Statements. A child’s oral statement may be recorded and, upon motion 14 

and for good cause shown, a child’s recorded statement is admissible as evidence in 15 

any court proceeding regarding the child protective order if the following conditions 16 

are met: 17 

(A) no attorney for any party is in the child’s presence when the statement is 18 

recorded; 19 

(B) the recording is visual and aural and is recorded on film or videotape or by 20 

other electronic means; 21 

(C) the recording equipment is capable of making an accurate recording, the 22 

operator of the equipment is competent, and the recording is accurate and has not 23 

been altered; 24 

(D) each voice in the recording is identified; 25 



URCP Rule 103 NEW Draft: 08.20.2025 

(E) the person conducting the interview of the child in the recording is present at 26 

the proceeding and is available to testify and be cross-examined by either party; 27 

(F) the parties and the parties’ attorneys are provided an opportunity to view the 28 

recording before it is shown to the court; 29 

(G) the court views the recording and determines that it is sufficiently reliable and 30 

trustworthy and that the interest of justice will best be served by admission of the 31 

statement into evidence; and 32 

(H) the child is available to testify and to be cross-examined at trial, either in 33 

person or as provided in paragraph (d)(2) or (d)(3), or the court determines that 34 

the child is unavailable as a witness to testify at trial under the Utah Rules of 35 

Evidence. For purposes of this paragraph, “unavailable” includes a determination, 36 

based on medical or psychological evidence or expert testimony, that the child 37 

would suffer serious emotional or mental strain if required to testify at trial. 38 

(2) Recorded Testimony. The court may order that a child’s testimony be taken 39 

outside the courtroom and be recorded. That testimony is admissible as evidence, for 40 

viewing in any court proceeding regarding the allegations relating to the protective 41 

order, if the provisions of this paragraph and paragraph (d)(3) are observed: 42 

(A) the recording is both visual and aural and recorded on film or videotape or by 43 

other electronic means; 44 

(B) the recording equipment is capable of making an accurate recording, the 45 

operator is competent, and the recording is accurate and is not altered; 46 

(C) each voice on the recording is identified; and 47 

(D) each party is given an opportunity to view the recording before it is shown in 48 

the courtroom. 49 

(3) Live Testimony. The court may order that a child’s testimony may be taken in a 50 

room other than the courtroom if the following conditions are observed: 51 



URCP Rule 103 NEW Draft: 08.20.2025 

(A) Only the judge, domestic commissioner, attorneys for each party, persons 52 

necessary to operate equipment, and a counselor or therapist whose presence 53 

contributes to the child’s welfare and emotional well-being may be with the child 54 

during the testimony. The parties may also be present during the child’s testimony 55 

unless a party consents to be hidden from the child’s view, or the court determines 56 

that the child will suffer serious emotional or mental strain if required to testify in 57 

the party’s presence, or that the child’s testimony will be unreliable if required to 58 

testify in the party’s presence. If the court makes that determination, or if the party 59 

consents: 60 

(i) the party may not be present during the child’s testimony; 61 

(ii) the court will ensure that the child cannot hear or see the party; 62 

(iii) the court will advise the child prior to testifying that the party is present at 63 

the trial and may listen to the child’s testimony; 64 

(iv) the party must be permitted to observe and hear the child’s testimony, and 65 

the court will ensure that the party has a means of two-way telephonic 66 

communication with counsel during the child’s testimony; 67 

(v) normal court procedures must be approximated as nearly as possible; 68 

(B) Only the judge, domestic commissioner, and attorneys may question the child 69 

unless the court otherwise orders; and 70 

(C) As much as possible, persons operating equipment must be confined to an 71 

adjacent room or behind a screen or mirror so the child cannot see or hear them. 72 

(4) Combining recorded and live testimony prohibited. If the court orders that the 73 

testimony of a child be taken under paragraph (d)(2), the child may not be required 74 

to testify in court at any proceeding where the recorded testimony is used. 75 



���������	��
�����
���������
��
����������������		�����
�����
	����������������������������������������
	���	�������������������������	����������	���
���		������������������		��������������������������
���������
�������������	���
���		������������������������� �
���
�����!�����������
���!���!������		������������
�		�����"������!���!�����
	��
����	
���
�������������������
����"�����
����������#����
�		�����
�		������
��������
�����������������
�����������������������
�		�����
���
�������
��������������������������������
�����
$%&'()*�+(,'(-.(/�01�2324

�56789���������������
	���	������������������
������	
���!���
�������������������������:����������
������������
����������
���!�����
��
��!�������
����	������������������������
����
��������
�
��
���;
<;=<;9<�
���������������������
��
������#���������
���	�
���
������!���
������
��!���
��
���>?��
���@�
������	��
������
����5����
���A
	��!��������B������5����
�����������
����������  
��=C>C�@��DC�����������
����
���������
	���	�������;�<;E<;
<����
������
�	
������
�������56789���������������
	���	��������������������
���!����"������������	
�������
���
������
����!������
����������������
�����:�����������������
����
����������������������
��"�
�������	������������������������������������������
��������F������
�������������
���������
�����	��������������
�����������������
���
������
�����������
�������	
�������
�����
�����	�������
���������������
������������������
����	
!���������������
	���
����!���

GHIJKLMMM NOPQRS��������
�����		�������	�������������
�
������
����		�������������������������		������
�������
�����������
�����		��������
�
	���	������������������������	����

TUVWTVWXY�TUZT[�\] _̂̀ab�cd�efgf̀�hicjak_ia�l�ecmmano�haifck�ècbak�pjocqai�WUY�WUWX�l�rost�ec_io�̂_̀ab�l�h_q̀fbtak�dci�ecmmano

tooubZVV̀avsjwx_ojc_iobxvcgV_ojVi_̀abyjcmmanoVWUWXVU[VUzVi_̀abycdyjfgf̀yuicjak_iayjcmmanoyuaifckyj̀cbabycjocqaiyWUyWUWXV TVT[



��������	
�����
��������� �� �� �
� ���������������
	�
����	����������

�
������������
	����������	��	��������	���	�����		���	�������������������	�������������	�������	������	�������������������� !"!#$%&'(�������	��������	��
	�����	�����	�������������������
��	���	��������������������	���	������������
�������������)���	���
�������*���������������+��������,�������-	�����	��+����.� �
�� /��0�+�1

-	�
�����+��������)��'&�(&2(&3(�&4���	�
	��������*
��������	��
������������������������	��
�������������������	��
����������	����
��

��	�����������������5(������������6������	�������	��������	�7��	������
�������������	��
8��	�
	�����������������
�	�
���������������6��������������	���)�����	��
��1��1�����	������-	�������������������������
��9�#"�&4�������������
���6����5(:� 	*�)����;�����	�����+���	��	�����)���<<���2$#$���%$��9�%#��2.��-�.��#$.'�&��
����=��)�46�����
�	����5(�

>?@A>@ABC�>?D>E�FG HIJKL�MN�OPQPJ�RSMTKUISK�V�OMWWKXY�RKSPMU�OJMLKU�ZTYM[KS�A?C�A?AB�V�\Y]̂�OMISY�HIJKL�V�RI[JPL̂KU�NMS�OMWWKXY

ŶY_LD@@JK̀]TabIYTMISYLb̀MQ@IYT@SIJKLcTMWWKXY@A?AB@?E@?d@SIJKLcMNcTPQPJc_SMTKUISKcTMWWKXYc_KSPMUcTJMLKLcMTYM[KScA?cA?AB@ A@>E



���������	
����
��
��
�����
������
����	
�����������������������������
������	
�����������������
�������������������������
�����������������������������������
�� �!����������������
����������"�������������
�����
�����������#��"����"�������
������$�������"�%��"�&����'()�)'**
��
�������
+� �!���"���������,������������"��-��������.
���������
������"������"�������������������
� � ����"���*'/�����
������'()�)'**
��
+��0	��
�����������������
������	
��������������
��������������������1����������"����
����+���
����������������������������������
������������
�����	
����
��
��
.� .���������������������#���
������+�������+������������
����	
�����������������������������������������"����
��������������������������������������#��������������������������������������#��� �02���������(������&����� �&� �� �	�++���#��/*��%3�.����/4#�5�*4#44��� 4��*//�#�*//6)*/*/�
�/*��%��"�&� �.�� ����������7���������"����"��%��"�	
�������&�����������
������������"���������������������������������
�����������#�����"��+����������������� �%��"�	 �&�� �� ��
��
*� �8������������������������+������"����
��#��������"������������9����������+����������������������������"��"����
�� �!� �	 ����
:.��������������
��������������������
��������������������"����
���������������������"���������"���������9���������#��)������������#��"����
�+��������,��
�+�� ;�<�=�������1"�� �>
����#��//*�%3�.����#����� ���
�����
������
�������?�����"���������9��
���������������"����
�������������������"�������������:1�����"������������������������������
��������������;� �@�����������"��"������������
����"���	�++���9��������������,�
���"������1����������������"�"������������������������������������������:����A��B����(����������������
��������
��������������?������%��"��� ;
���������	
���*/4!�������������"����"������������
����"�������$��������"�
�"��
��������������������"����������������������
����"������������������
�������"��������"������ ���������?�������
��)��������������������������������������#�������������"���������������"��������������������#����������������������������� �C������#�!�"��������D�������������������������"������������
���������������
����������"����
��#�������
�����������"��&"������9��E
�����&�������
&E&�����������"�������������
���
��������������������
->3���������� 

FGHIFHIJK�FGLFM�NO PQRST�UV�WXYXR�Z[U\S]Q[S�̂�WU__S̀a�ZS[XU]�WRUTS]�b\aUcS[�IGK�IGIJ�̂�daef�WUQ[a�PQRST�̂�ZQcRXTfS]�VU[�WU__S̀a

faagTLHHRShe\ijQa\UQ[aTjhUYHQa\H[QRSTk\U__S̀aHIGIJHGMHGlH[QRSTkUVk\XYXRkg[U\S]Q[Sk\U__S̀akgS[XU]k\RUTSTkU\aUcS[kIGkIGIJH lHFM



��������	�
��
�	������
����������������
�����
�������	����
����	������������	��
����	�����������������������	�
��
�����	���
�����������
	���������������	���	����
�����	����� ��	�
���������	��������������	�������������������� ������
��
����	��
����	�
	�����
�������	����	
������	����
�����	�����	�����������

��������	�������	��	���	��	�
�������	��
���	����������������������������
���
�
��	���	�
�����������������
���� �������������������	�����������
�����	�����	����������������!�����������
�		������������
	�����������������"��������

� ����	�������	��#�������	����
�����	������
��
������������������������
�����
���
�	�
�����������
����	�

�
�
	�����
�����������������	�	���
��������	�����

�������� ���������

��
���	�������������
	�����
�
�����"���$��

���	�������
��
�	��
���������������	�
��������������	�	�����	���	��������������	����������
����
������	����������
��
�	�����������	�
�����	��������

������������
�������	������	��������	����
�����	�����	�!��
���������	���� �
���������
����	� ��	��������	����!���
����
������	�
�	������	����������
��
�	�����	���������������
��	� ������
��
���������	����
����$���
��������	������
����
����������������	��
����������
�%����� ��	����%����	�����	���
�
��	��#�	�%�	������&����
��
�	�� ����	���
��������������
��� ���������	��&�������������	���������������
	�����
����������������'����	�������	�
��
�
#��

��	�������
����������
��� $��
�(
������ �����������	�����	���
������	����� ����
��
�����	������	��	�
��
�������������
������
����	��������	��
��
�	������	�
�����������	���
��)��
������	���
�������	������	��������#��
���
�
��	���	�
���������	���	����%����	������	�
��
�	�� ���	����
���

���	�������������	�������	�
��
���������	���	�����������
�����������	���	���	
������	���������������������
�������

�	�
���������#���
��	�!��

���������� �*+'���	���	� ��	���
���	� ���
��������
���� ����
��
����
��	���	���������
�!�	����

����������������
���������������	����
���	�������������	����������������	����	����
�
�������'���#�������	����	�
��������������	���
�����
��
�	���������	
������	���������������
#����
������
��
�#���������������	�������	�
��
��������	���	�����������
�����������	���	���	�
������	������

,-./,./01�,-2,3�45 6789:�;<�=>?>8�@A;B9C7A9�D�=;EE9FG�@9A>;C�=8;:9C�HBG;I9A�/-1�/-/0�D�JGKL�=;7AG�6789:�D�@7I8>:L9C�<;A�=;EE9FG

LGGM:2..89NKBOP7GB;7AG:PN;?.7GB.A789:QB;EE9FG./-/0.-3.-R.A789:Q;<QB>?>8QMA;B9C7A9QB;EE9FGQM9A>;CQB8;:9:Q;BG;I9AQ/-Q/-/0. S.,3



���������������	
��
�����
�������
��
���������
�������
����������������
����������������
��� �
��
�
����
���
�
������!
�!������
	
��"
�����
��#������$���
���"
�����
	���
��
�%&
	��������������
����������
��
���������
��������
'���"
��
���
�(���������������!
�!�����
�������
���
�����������
	
��#��������
������������������������
�������������
�����%)����	�
�
��
��������
��
�����������
���� 
�����	����
������������
	�������(�������*�
���
��
��%�+

��������!
�!������
	
�
�������������
�(�

�����������
���
	
� �
�
���������
���,�-#���
�����������������
�
���������
���,�-�#���
����)���
����������
�
����*�
���
��
���
	
� �
%�.���

�
����
�	���
���
�����*��/��������!���
�����������*���
��
�����
�
����*�
���
�
���
	
� �
��
���
	
� �������
���
���
�
������������%�)��
���
���������!
�����
����
������!
�!�����
����*�
��
	
��!
�����
	��
��
�%�)��������
��
���	�����
������������
��������
���,�-#���
����)���
������ ��
������
������
��!�
�
��������(����
��������
�������
�������!
�����
�����*�0��
�
��� ������
���������
����	

��������*���!
�*���
�����*�
���
��
���
	
� %�)�
�������
������
������!��
�
����*�������
�������
	�
�������
����������
������
����1
�*�
�������� ���������!
�	
���
��
�����
�*�
���
��%.�����
�
�����������
�
�
����
�
����
����*�����
���
	
� �
�����
� �
�������
�������������!���*�����
���
	
� %�)��
��
������
���
��
���
��������
���#���
����������������
�#���
����)���
��������� ������
�
���������!���*�����
���
	
� %�2
��
�����������/��*��
	�
������
��������
�
����
���
	
� �
�� 
�������
�
��!
�	
������������
	
��
�������������*�
��3�����
�����
���
�
���
	
� ��������
�������
����1
�*�
�������������!
�	
����
��
�����
�*�
���
��%�+�
���
����
���
��������
��� ����!
�	�������
���
	
� �
�*
�����4
���(����
�����
�*����������!�
���������
���������������
���
*�
�� 
����

�
���������������
�	���
���
���%.�����
�
�������������	�������
���
���
�
���
���
	
� �����������*�
�����!�
!�����*�����
���!
�����
	���
��
�����
���
������
������������������*��/
��
�����
��
�������
��������
�,���-�
�5�!�
�������*���
�������+��
�����
	
����,5�+�-�
���
	
� ��������������!�
���*��

�
����������������
�	���
���
���%�6���
����!
�!�����
�������
������*�
�	���
���
����������
���
	������!��*�������
����������
�5�+��
���
	
� ����!�
���*����

��
	�
�����
����
���	�
����*�
��!��
�����	�����!���������


�	���
���
��%�)�
��������
������
��������
��������
���
������
�	���
���
��������
��
����	
�����������
��
�����������
��*��
�����������
��%6������ ���4�� �����������
�!�
�������*�!
�����
���������
���������

�
���
����
���
	
� ��
������7
��
�����
����*�#
����%�6��������8�991$91:�,�-,�-���������
���	
��
�����	������

�������������
�	���
���
�����������
�
�
���������� ���*�
��������
�����5
	
�
����*���
�������+��
����
	
��������4��!����3����
������

�
���
	
� ��������
������������������
��
���������
��������
��
�����
���	
����������
��
���
�
����������
����

!����*�������
���
�
���%�;/��!����!
�	
����
���������
���,<-��
���
�
���������
����

!����*
���
	
� ��������������
��

�������
����������
��
�!��������������� 
�����������
���
��
%)�
��!
�!�����
�������������������������
�������
���
��
���!
�	
����������
�5�+��
���
����
���
	
� ����������
����!�
������!�
���*���!
�����
	���
��
����

��%+
��������������
�� ���
�
���� ������������!
�!�����
��������

=>?@=?@AB�=>C=D�EF GHIJK�LM�NOPOI�QRLSJTHRJ�U�NLVVJWX�QJROLT�NILKJT�YSXLZJR�@>B�@>@A�U�[X\]�NLHRX�GHIJK�U�QHZIOK]JT�MLR�NLVVJWX

]XX̂KC??IJ_\S̀aHXSLHRXKa_LP?HXS?RHIJKbSLVVJWX?@>@A?>D?>c?RHIJKbLMbSOPOIb̂RLSJTHRJbSLVVJWXb̂JROLTbSILKJKbLSXLZJRb@>b@>@A? A?=D



��������	
���������������
���������������������������

���
�������
�
��������
���
�����
����
�������������������
�����

����������
�
�������
����
��������	
������������������
����

������
�����������������
���������
�����������
�������������������������

������
��������������������������
���
����
�������������������������������� ��
��� ����!
��������
�
���"�����
���#$�$��	�
�������
�������
�����
�	����������
�����������������
���
�����
���������������������������
�
���
���	
�����

�������
���������������������%���
������������������	������������������������������
������
����&������
�����
�	�
�����
������������
�����'��(
��
�������������
�����

���������
��
����������������
�������
����������������������
����	�����������	�
������	�
�
����������
���
�������
�
����
���������
���������������������������������)����������������
��
������������������
�����'��(
��
��������*�(��"���������������
�������
��������������������
�
�!
���#+,����
������
�������
�������������������
��
�������������������&�������	
�����
����������
)��������������-�"��������!
���#+,&�������
�����������
����
��
���������
�����������������
�������
�
������
����
������
�
������������
��������
�����
�������.���
�����	��������
�
���
���
���
����������
������������
������������
��/
�������������
����
���
�
���������������
�����������
�����
�����
���������
��������������������������
���
�������������	����������
��/����������
�
�
�������������0�	������&�������
��
%��������������������
������������
���
�
�������������
��������
���
������������������
�����'��(
��
����������1�(��2������	
���������������
��
�
��
��
����������134�2��������
������	��������������������
�����������������	���/��
��������
�������&���������)�����
��&�����
�	�5���
���&����������������
������
����
�����
��������������������������
�
�����
�	��1)&�2����������������
�
������
�����������

�
���)&��������������
���
����
����
���
������������
��
���
��������(������
������)�����
��
�����
�	������������
��������������
����
������
�
�����������(��

6789689:;�67<6=�>? @ABCD�EF�GHIHB�JKELCMAKC�N�GEOOCPQ�JCKHEM�GBEDCM�RLQESCK�97;�979:�N�TQUV�GEAKQ�@ABCD�N�JASBHDVCM�FEK�GEOOCPQ

VQQWD<88BCXULYZAQLEAKQDZXEI8AQL8KABCD[LEOOCPQ8979:87=87\8KABCD[EF[LHIHB[WKELCMAKC[LEOOCPQ[WCKHEM[LBEDCD[ELQESCK[97[979:8 ]86=



����������	
���	�
�
��
�������
����	�
�����
	�����	����	����
���	
������
	������		�������		����
	
�	���	�
������	��	
���
���	���
�	�������
	�
�������
����	
��	�	
����������
��

	������������
	
�	������������������
	��	
����	
	��������
���
������	
����
����
	�������	
��	����������	����
����	��
��	���	��	�����������
��		���������	�
	�
�	���
����
����	����
�������
��
��	��������

	�������������������������
��������
��������
����	��
����
��
�	��
�����	����	�
���������	����	����
���	��
��	�������
�������������������
���������	�����������
��		�����������
��
��

	����
��

��������	��
�	�

	�	
����	�������	��
���
	�������	
��	������	�
�
	�
�	���
����
���
��	
�
	�
�����	������������
���
�	������	��	��
��	��

������	 �	��	���!�	��"�
������������������
����������	��
���"	��
������	��	������	��
����
���
�	����	
	���
	��	
������	����	������	�����	�
	�	��������	����
�
����
������
���	
�������
���	�
���������
�����
�
��������������	��������������������������	������#�
��	������	������
�������
������
����
��������	
������	��

��
$����
�	�����	��������	�
����	��
��	����%���	
���&	�

��������	
��	��'
�������
���(�
��"�
�����)��	
	����
����
��������������	��
����	��
��	�
	�

����������
������������	
��	������������
	��������	�
��	�������	
�
	�	�����
�������������
�������

	�����

��	����
	�������	
��	�	
�������
��
���
�	������������	�
��
��
����
��

	����������������
�
	��
����	
��	�����
����
����������������������	�������"�
���
��������	
��	����������	��������	���	��
�����	���	���	��	$�
�	����

��
$����
�	���
���������
���
��	
�	�����
	$�

��
��*	�����
	������
����	�����	�����������
���+	��

��*	�����������	����
�������&	����	��
����,���	��������
����	���	


��������
������
��������������
��
��	��	����
	��

��
$����
�	����
�����
	�����
	��	���������
�	���
��������
����	��
��	��	
	�
��	�������	��������		���
���
��	
������	

�������������
����
����
��
���
	�	�
�����
�	����	
������������%-%��������

��	
���
��	����
����������
����
�	���
����������	��

	��
��	�����
����	��������	�����	���
	�
��������	
��
�����������	����	���
���	�
��
����

����
��������
��������
���������
����
��������	��������	�������������
��	������
�����
����
�������	

�������������		��
���

./01.0123�./4.5�67 89:;<�=>�?@A@:�BC=D;E9C;�F�?=GG;HI�B;C@=E�?:=<;E�JDI=K;C�1/3�1/12�F�LIMN�?=9CI�89:;<�F�B9K:@<N;E�>=C�?=GG;HI

NIIO<400:;PMDQR9ID=9CI<RP=A09ID0C9:;<SD=GG;HI01/120/50/T0C9:;<S=>SD@A@:SOC=D;E9C;SD=GG;HISO;C@=ESD:=<;<S=DI=K;CS1/S1/120 U0.5



��������	�
�����	����������
���	�
�����
����������
����
����
���������
�������������
�������������������������
���������
�������
����������������
���
��������������
�������
�����
�������
��������������������������������
��������������������	������������������������	������������� ������������	����	��
��	���
���
����������������
���������������������
����
���������!�������
	�����	����������������	���
����������
���
����� 
���	�
����	�������
�
���������"�
��������#	��
���"������$�����
�!�����
���� �����
�
����������	��� ���%&' ���"#"�()������
��
�� �������������������
���
��������
����
�������
�����
���������	�� ��������������
���
����"�
���*������
���+���
��� �������������
���
��������&��������%����������
,�� ����������������
��
-
���
��
��
������ ���� ��������������
���������� ���
��
�
�	����
����
�����.���
�����������������������������	����������
-���������
�
���	�
�����
��������
��	��
��"*/������
��0���1
����	�������
�	��
�����%	
�
�����
��
������
��������	�
������	��23�*	����������0��
����
�������
���,���3�4�����	���
�
�����3�(
�
�
-�������	������
��
��������
���
��
�����
����3�5��	�������
�����
����
�����
�����
�����
��6����
����3�7��������	������	�������������3�7���	�����
�����
�
����
�����
���
���6������	�
���8�
����������	�
����
�����	�����������	������������9	
������
������������0
�
����

������������������
��	����	��.����� �!�������,����������
������������������	�����
����� ���������������������������������	�
���
!��������������������
�������"#"�)
��������
�����������:�"*�����8�
���!�	��������������������
��������
�������
�����	����������������
������
�������
����������

��
������������	���������
�������
����
����.
��
����	��� ������	�� ����
��
����
���� ������������ �������
����������
�������������+��	���:�"*��������
��������
���	��
	����������
�����
�� ������
�
����
��������
�����

�����������
���	������������������������

����������
���
�����
���
��� ��������	��	���	��������$�����
�!�����
��������9	
�
���������
��������
����
�����
����������

��
������� ����������	��	���	����������
�����������
������������9	���
�����	��
��������������
���������
���� �������������
�
�
���
���	����
����
�����
���������
�������������
����� ��������������	��	���	�������9	
�
���������"#"����

��������

�������
������
��
�����������
��������
�����!����
�������������	�����������
�	������������� ���������
,�������������������
�����������
������
���!�������
��������
�������������
����9	���
���������
���	���������	������������
������������������������������

;<=>;=>?@�;<A;B�CD EFGHI�JK�LMNMG�OPJQHRFPH�S�LJTTHUV�OHPMJR�LGJIHR�WQVJXHP�><@�><>?�S�YVZ[�LJFPV�EFGHI�S�OFXGMI[HR�KJP�LJTTHUV

[VV\IA==GH]ZQ̂_FVQJFPVI_]JN=FVQ=PFGHÌQJTTHUV=><>?=<B=<a=PFGHÌJK̀QMNMG̀\PJQHRFPH̀QJTTHUV̀\HPMJR̀QGJIHÌJQVJXHP̀><̀><>?= b=;B



���������	
����	
���	��	��������
����������
��������	����������������������������
��������
	
���
���
������
	��	�����	��	�����	
����
	���	��������������	��
������

���
��
���������	��
�������
	��������������������
	������	��	���
�����
� �����

����������
���	���
���
���	��
������������
��

���
��
���	����	��
����!�"�����
���	���������	
�	��	��
������

��	�
	�
�������������"���#�
	�����	��
�	�����	����	���
���
���������	���������$��
���	�
�������	��������!��
�����
���������	���������$��
���	�
�����
����������������	�
��
%���������	����� ��
�������
�
��
���	���
���
���	��
������!��
�����
����	�������������	����	���	�
�������
	�������
���	�
��������
�
�	��������
$���	���
����

�$�������
�����	�
	�����!�&����	�
�������	��������������
��	�	�
��
%�����������
���

������
��	�������	���'
	��������	��$�
�����
�������������������
!�(�	�
�������	������
�	����
���������
�������	��

����
	�
�������$������
�	�����	�������������������	����
�!�&
�	�������	
��� �����
�	���	����	��	������
������
$���������
	�����	��
������

���
��
������
	���	����
����
��#�
	�����������	�
	��
��$��
�������
���!"���
����������	��
�	����� �������	��
��
�����	��������
����	���������)*+,�	�
	����$�	�
�
���
���	������
�����������

��
	
�	�������

������
�������	�������������$�����
��	�����	����
����!�"��
����
	�
�
�#�
���
���$���
	����	�
	�������$�����	������
���-�����	�.�
	�$���������
����$�	�	��!�"�������
	�$�$�		����
�
�	���������	��
�������
	������	���	��� �������	���*+
���	����������$�		�����
����	��$�����
��	��������������� ����	
�����	��
����������
�
�
�������	�����


������.�$���	��
!"���	�������������
�������
�	����
�������������/
�-�
	������	��/
�)�-�,���������������
�����	������
!�"��
�������
����		�������
��������
�����	�����	�������
���	�������
	��
	��������

!�&
�	��
����	������
�
������	��	���������
	�����	����������	�������
	��
	����	�
���
�	��������	��	�������
	��
	���������	��	��
�������
	����$�����
�
���!�"����
�����	��
����	������
������	��
������
	��
	����$�����������	���������.���
���'��
�����
	��
	�����
���������������������	��$������
���

�$���	�	��
��$���������
	��
	��!�"��
������

�������
�����	�����

������������
���.���
���'����
�������
���

�!�"��
��
�����������
��	������������

��	�����

�$���	������
���
��������	���'
	������	��������!"��
���������
���������	�	����

��
�

������-��
	
���������
����	������
���
������������	��0�*1�
����	���
������	���������	��	�
��������	��$�����	�����
����������

�������������!&�������	���	���
������
���������	����+�
�
����
���	����������	�
	�	��������
��������$����	������	��	��������		��!�&�
���+��
���	����������������	�
	�
����

��	�
��
	
��������
�$�������������	��
����
��

���
�	�������������
�����	�	���

��	����
�����
���
�����	�	�������������������
	
	�!�+������
������	���	��
������������
�����	����	������
��

���������������	����������/
�-�
	�������	���
����0"��
�	���
��������
	��
	���	�
�
�����
���	��
�����	���
����
	�
�
���0�*1!����

����	����������������
��� ��
	���
!

234524567�23829�:; <=>?@�AB�CDED>�FGAH?I=G?�J�CAKK?LM�F?GDAI�C>A@?I�NHMAO?G�537�5356�J�PMQR�CA=GM�<=>?@�J�F=O>D@R?I�BAG�CAKK?LM

RMMS@844>?TQHUV=MHA=GM@VTAE4=MH4G=>?@WHAKK?LM4535643943X4G=>?@WABWHDED>WSGAH?I=G?WHAKK?LMWS?GDAIWH>A@?@WAHMAO?GW53W53564 9429



��������	�
�����
��������	��������
������������
����
�����
��
��������
����
������	�
����
��������
���
��
�����
����	����������������
��������
������
�������
������
����������
�����
��������������
��������
��������������
����
����
������
�������������
����
�	�
���
�����������	�
��������
�����
����������
�	������������
��
���������
������

	������	
������������������������
�������
����	���
�
���
����	
�����
����	���
������	�����
��
���	�������������
�	��������
��	�
������	���������������
������
��������������
������
����
��	��	������
���
��������
������
��������
��������������
�����������
���������
�
���	�������	�
��
�����
����
��
����
������������
����
��
������
������������������
��	��
������
���
��	�
��� �������
�
������	�����������������	�����	������
�����������	
�������!	���
������
!
����	
��������������������
�����
���������������	����
�����	���������	���������
��������
��	�
���� �����
�
���������������
������
���	������
�"�������������

���

��������
��������������
����������������
���#��������	������
�
���������


�
�����������
��
������
�������

�������������������
��������������	�!
����
����
������
�
�	
�������
	�����
���"��"
����$
����
�����������
�
��!	��
������������
�����������	
�������������������	������
���������������������
������������%�������������
������
���
�����
�
���
��
�
��������������
��
��������	��������
����
�������
����
���
�������
����
�������
��
��������
���
���
��
�������
������
��	����
��
���
��������������
������
�����
�������������
��
������
�
����
���
�������

&'()&()*+�&',&-�./ 01234�56�78982�:;5<3=1;3�>�75??3@A�:3;85=�72543=�B<A5C3;�)'+�)')*�>�DAEF�751;A�01234�>�:1C284F3=�65;�75??3@A

FAAG4,((23HE<IJ1A<51;A4JH59(1A<(;1234K<5??3@A()')*('-('L(;1234K56K<8982KG;5<3=1;3K<5??3@AKG3;85=K<25434K5<A5C3;K)'K)')*( &'(&-


	00 January 9, 2026 Meeting Agenda
	1 TAB1
	1a Juvenile Rules Committee - December 5, 2025 Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	2 TAB2
	2a Rule 3 Draft October 10, 2025 (redline)
	2b Rule 3 Draft October 10, 2025 (clean)
	2c Public Comments on Rules 3, 15, 20A
	3 TAB3
	3a Rule 15 Draft October 10, 2025 (redline)
	3b Rule 15 Draft October 10, 2025 (clean)
	4 TAB4
	4a Rule 20A Draft November 12, 2025 (redline)
	4b Rule 20A Draft November 12, 2025 (clean)
	5 TAB5
	5a Rule 22 Draft October 10, 2025 (redline)
	5b Rule 22 Draft October 10, 2025 (clean)
	6 TAB6
	6a Rule 18 Draft December 31, 2025 (redline)
	6b Rule 18 Draft December 31, 2025 (clean)
	7 TAB7
	7a Rule 20 Draft November 21, 2025 (redline)
	8 TAB8
	8a Rule 21 Draft November 20, 2025 (redline)
	8b Rule 23A Draft November 20, 2025 (redline)
	9 TAB9
	9a New URCP 103
	9b New URCP 103 Comments

